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PM~U 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

The Honorab]e Jim Shapkoff, Jr. , Mayor and Members of the City Council City of Leesville, Louisiana 
We have audited the accompanying primary government financial statements and the co~ini.ng, individual fund, and account group financial statements of the City <>f Leesville, Louisiana, as of and for the year ended June 30, 1997, as listed ~l. tle table of contents. These financial, statements are the responsibility of the management of City of Leesville, Louisiana. Our responsibility is to express all opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. Except as discussed in the following paragraph, we conducted our audit Jy~ accordance with generally accepted auditing standards; the standards applicab] e to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the provisions of Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A--133, Audits of States, Local Governmenf~;, and Non-Profit Corporations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require tll~t we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whethe] the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit JncUuc]es examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures i n t he financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe theft our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. As more fully explained in Note i, the financial statements of the General l'J>ed Assets Account Group include only assets acquired subsequent to 1971. Records of general fixed assets acquired prior to 1972 were not maintained. Genera] ly accepted accounting principles require the recording of fixed assets at cost, ~r estimated historical cost, if cost records are not available. A primary government is a legal entity or body politic and includes all fnn~is, organizations, institutions, agencies, departments, and offices that are riot legal]y separate. Such legally separate entities are referred to as compo1~or~t units. In our opinion, except for the effects of not recording general fJ>:ed assets acquired prior to 1972 as discussed above, the primary gover,~nent financ.~a] 
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PM,.~'lt PAYNE, MOORF. & } II!I~.RINGTON, Lh] 
The Honorable Jim Shapkoff, Jr. , Mayor and Members of the City Council City of Leesville, Louisiana 
statements referred to in the first paragraph present fairly, in all mat e ~ J ~, ! respects, the financial position of the primary go~,ernment of City of Leesvi]]~, Louisiana, os of June 30, 1997, and the results of its operations and cash f]ow~ of its proprietary fund types for the year then ended in conformity with genera]fly accepted accounting principles. Alse, in our opinion, except for the effects ~,f not recording general fixed assets acquired prior to 1972, the comb~ nJ x*~1, individual fund, and account group financial statements referred to in the fJ~:t paragraph present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of each of the individual funds and account groups of the City of Leesville, Louisiana, as of June 30, 199'7, and the results Of operations of such funds and the cash flows of individual proprietary funds for the year then ended in conformity wi ~:h generally accepted accounting principles. However, the primary government financial statements, because they do not include the financial data of the component units of the City of Leesville, Louisiana, do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the City ,>f Leesville, Louisiana, as of June 30, 1997, and the results of its operations a:id cash flows of its proprietary fund types for the year then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. As discussed in Note i to the financial statements, effective July i, 1996, the City adopted Statement Number 24 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, Accounting and aE~orting for Certain Grants and Other Financial Assistance. In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our repol i, dated NoveHd~er 17, 1997, on our consideration of the internal control ove~ financial reporting of the City of Leesville, Louisiana, and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants~. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the pr~ma~y government financial statements taken as a whole and on the combining, individual fund, and account group financial statements. The accompanying financJ a ] information listed as additional information in the table of contents, inc]lldJ;~g the schedule of expenditures of federal awards as required by the U. S. Office of 



S, and ~Jo~; and is nc:l Lou3 sJ ana . Such information, except for the listing of insurance in force marked "unaudited,' has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied ~n the audit of the primaly government, combining, individual fund, snd account group financial statements anci, in eur opinion, is fairly presented in all material respects in relation to the financial statements of each of the respective individual funds and account grou[>s of the primary government taken as a whole. 

November 17, 1997 
/ IzP 



The Primary Government Financial Statements, which include all funds and accoui~t groups of the City that are not legelly separate, are designed to provide arl overview of the financial position and results of operations for the prilua~y government as a whole. Additional information in the form of combining, individual fund, and account group statements and schedules is included elsewhere ill thJ s report. 
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CITY OF LEESVILLE, LOUISIANA COMBINED STATEMENT OF' REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS - ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997 

OPERATING REVENUES Charges for services Other Total Operating Revenues OPERATING EXPENSES Salaries and fzinge benefits Repairs and maintenance Depreciation Other operating expenses Claims paid Insurance premiums Total Operating Expenses OPEF~TING INCOME (LOSS) NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) Ad valorem taxes Interest revenue Interest expense and fiscal charges Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT'S 
EXH]BI]D 

ENTERPRISE $1,551,753 1,551,753 
269,522 237,702 334,130 289,266 
~x130 620 

:INTERNAL SERVICE $324,006 31,550 355,556 
17,506 253,920 85,134 35356j_6560 

TOTAL MEMORANDUM ON1,Y $I, 875, 759 __3!, :~ h !~ 1,907,309 
269,522 237,702 334,13( 306,77~; 253,92C 85 13,; ~87,!8C 421,133 (1,004) 420,]2'9 

315,164 31,729 _]169,769} 177,124 -0- 
315,164 31,729 

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE OPERATING TRANSFERS 598,257 (1,004) 597,253 OPERATING TRANSFERS (OUT) NET 1NCOME (LOSS .(675,000) (76,743) (1,004) (77,74 RETAINED EARNINGS, BEGINNING OF YEAR ]~ 3233x39~07 ]54,091 RETAINED EARNINGS, END OF YEAR $ i, 246,564 $ ] 53x 087 $~j3~99,.6 ~I.! 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 



 

CITY OF LEESVILLE, LOUTSIANA COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Operating income (loss) Ad[justments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided by operating activities Depreciation Provision for doubtful accounts Changes ~n assets and liabilities Receivables Due from other funds Accounts payable Other current iiabilities Accrued expenses Due to other funds Customers" deposits Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 

EXH]B::T~ PRIMARY GOVERNMENT'S 
ENTERPRISE INTERNAL SERVICE TOTAL MEMORAN DLI H $ 421,133 $ (1,004) $ 420,129 
334,130 11,161 (5,245) (178,707) (3,998) 1,580 1,795 (102,893) 1,641 480,597 

917 12,831 
12,744 

334,13[ 11,16] (4, 178, 8, 1, 1, 102, ], 493, 
32 70 83 58 79 89 69 34 CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES Operating transfers out (675,000) -0- (675,00f CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL Issuance of bonds and indebtedness FINANCING ACTIVITIES certificates of Ad valorem taxes Contributions in aid of construction Acquisition of property, plant, and equipment Payments of revenue bonds and other indebtedness Cost of issuing bonds and certificates of indebtedness Interest, excluding capitalized interest ])aid on long-term debt Net Cash Used in Capital Financing Activities CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES Redemption (purchase) of investments Interest received Net Cash Provided by Investing Actiw[ties INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR 

CLASSIFIED AS Current Assets Restricted Assets TOTALS 

3,434,084 295,394 1,003,071 (4,219,740) (471,860) (9,022) _~_[167,791) 

3,434,084 295,394 1,003,071 4,219,74( 
(9,022 

(135,864 -0- (135,864 
{12,105) _32,836 20,731 -0- (12,JOf, 32.836 20.73: 309,536) 12,744 (296,792 i_~927,773 159,761 $____718,237 $172,50__5 $ 8_90.a 742 45,024 $172,505 673,213 $ 718,237 $ 217,529 673,213 $172,50~ $ 89Q~.792 The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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CITY OF LEESVILLE NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS JUNE 30, 1997 List of Notes 
Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies A. Change in Accounting Principle B. The Financial Reporting Entity C. Individual Component Units Not Included in this Report . D. Related Organization E. Fund Accounting F. Basis of Accounting G. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting H. Encumbrances I. Cash and Investments J. Short-term Interfund Receivables/Payables K. Inventories L. Restricted Assets M. Fixed Assets N. Bond Issuance Costs O. Compensated Absences P. Interfund Transactions Q. Long-Term Obligations R. Fund Equity S. Retained Earnings - Reserved T. Supplemental Wages U. Memorandum Only - Total Columns V. Estimates Cash and Investments Receivables Due From/To Other Funds Restricted Assets - Proprietary Fund Type Fixed Assets Long-Term Debt and Capitalized Leases Contributed Capital Reserved Retained Earnings Reserved Fund Balances Designated Fund Balance Accumu]ated Deiicits Ad Valerem Taxes Enterprise Funds - Operations Employee Benefits Insurance Risk Management Compensation Paid to Mayor and City Council Public Employees' Retirement Systems Defined Contribution Plan Supplemental Pay Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations Legal Compliance 
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CITY OF LEESVILLE JUNE 30, 1997 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
i. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
The City of Leesville, Louisiana (the of the governor on February 15, 1900. administrator form of government. "City") was incorporated by proclamal ~<I The City operates under a counc~ ] - 
The financial statements of the City of Leesville, Louisiana, (the pr~ma~y government) have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accountJrg principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Account~r~g Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for estab1~shir~g governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the City's accounting policies are described belov A. Change in Accounting Principle Effective July i, 1996, the City implemented the provisions of Statemei!~ Number 24 (GASB 24) of the Government Accounting Standards Board, Accounting a~id Fin6~ncial Reporting for Certain Grants and Other Financial Assistance. Under GA.C~B 24, the City recognizes as revenue and expenditures supplemental wages received ~.y fire and police employees from the State of Louisiana. B. The Financial Reporting Entity The City of Leesville is a municipal corporation governed by an electric| sew~n-member board. The accompanying fJnancial statements present only the da~.a of the primary government. A primary government is a legal entity or body politic, and includes a~l funds, organizations, institutions, agencies, departments, and offices that are not legally separate. These financial statements do not include the data of t~l~ component units necessary for reporting in conformity with generally acce~,ted accounting princ~ ples. C. Individual Component Units Not Included in this Report The City has two component units which are legally separate from the City. The City Marshal and the City Judge are elected by the voters of the City o~ Leesville. This report does not include these component units. 
]. The Leesville City Marshal is responsible for enforcing judgements of city court, maintaining order within the city court, and collection of[ city court fines. 
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CITY OF LEESVILLE JUNE 30, 1997 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
2. The Leesville City Court is responsible for hearing court cases involving violations of city laws and ordinances and for rendering judgements thereon. Complete financial statements for each of the two component units car~ be obtained from their respective administrative offices. 

Administrative Offices: Leesvil]e City Marshal P.O. Box 1486 Leesvil]e, Louisiana D. Related Organization The Leesville Housinq Authority. 
Leesville City Court P.O. Box 1486 Leesville, Louisiana 

The Authority is accountable to the Ci~ y since the City Council appoints the Authority's board members. However, since the City does not haw-TM the ability to impose its will on the Authority and no financial benefit/burden relationship exists, the City is not considered financ/a i I y accountable for the Authority. Accordingly, the Authority is not considered pa~t of the City for financial reporting purposes. E. Fund Accounting The City uses funds and account groups to report its financial position arid results of operations. Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal comp]Jan:!e and to aid financial management by segregating transactions related to ce]tain government functions or activities. A fund is a separate accounting entity with a self-balancing set of acco[!nt s. An account group, on the other hand, is a financial reporting device designed ~,c provide aecountability for certain assets and liabilities that are not recorded il the funds because they do not directly affect net expendable available finarcia] resources. 
Funds of the City are classified into two categories: governmental arid proprietary. Each category, in turn, is divided into separate "fund types." Governmental funds are used to account for all or most of a governmeni ' s general activities, including the collection and disbursement of earmarked monies (special revenue funds), the acquisition or construction of general fixed assets (capital prejects funds), and the servicing of general long-term debt (debt servi<:(: funds). The general fund is used to account for all activities of the gene~a] government not accounted for in some other fund. 

12 



CITY OF LEESVILLE JUNE 30, 1997 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Proprietary funds are used to account for activities similar to those fou~ld in the private sector, where the determinstion of net income is necessary or usefu] for sound financial administration. Goods or services from such activities can b~ provided either te outside parties (enterprise funds) or to other department.~ or agencies primari]y within the government (internal service funds). The General Fixed Asset Account Group is used to account for fixed asset s other than those used in the proprietary funds. The General Long-Term Debt Account Group is used to account for long-term debt not accounted for in other funds. F. Basis of Accounting The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund i.~ determined by its measurement focus. All governmental funds are accounted fo~ using a current financial resources measurement focus, with this measuremelt focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally are included oii thl, balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds present increases (i .e. , revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and othe: financing uses) in net current assets. Proprietary funds follow GAAP prescribed by the Governmental Accouter ] llq Standards Board and all Financial Accounting Standards Board's standards Jssu~<l prior to November 30, 1989. All proprietary funds are accounted for on a flow c f economic resources measurement focus. W~th this measurement focus, all asse~ s associated with the operation of these funds are included on the balance shee~. Fund equity (i.e., net total assets) Js segregated into contributed capita] arid retained earnings components. Proprietary fund-type operating statements prese:Lt increases (e.g., revenues) and decreases (e.g., expenses) in net total assets. The modified accrual basis of accounting is used by all governmental ~u~d types. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recog,lJzed when susceptible to accrual (i.e., when they become both measurable and available) . "Measurable" means the amount of the transaction can be determined and "available" means the amount is collectible within the current period or soon enough theresft,:~ to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. Expenditures are recerd,~d when the related fund liability is incurred. Principal and interest on gerleral long-term debts are recorded as fund liabilities when due or when amounts have been accumulated in the debt service fund for payments to be made early in the fol]ow]:Ig yeal_~ . 
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CITY OF LEESVILLE JUNE 30, 1997 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Those revenues susceptible to accrual are property taxes, franchise i~xe~, special assessments, grants, interest revenue, and charges for services. F1 ne!~, permits, and license revenues are not susceptible to accrual because generally t h~y are not measurable until received in cash. The accrual basis of accounting Js utilized by proprietary fund types, t]r~d~r this method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred. The City may report deferred revenuE; on its contbined balance sheet. Defel r~:d rew.~nues arJse when a potential reven~e does not meet both the "measurable" a11d "awlilable" criteria for recognition in the current period. Deferred revenues ~l~;o arise when resources are received by the City before it has a legal claim to t hc~, as when grant monies are received prior to the incurrence of qua li ~ yJ ~ig expenditures. In subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria a~e met or when the City has a legal claim to the resources, the liability for defelrcd revenue is removed from the balance sheet and revenue is recognized. G. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with GAAP which is also consisie:l~ with state law. Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for General, Special Rew-~nue, and Debt Service Funds. All annual appropriations lapse at the end o~ %~le fiscal year. Budgets for capital projects are adopted on ~ project-length basis. Because these nen-operating budgets primarily serve as a management coi~%ic:>] function, no comparison between budgeted and actual amounts for funds budgeted c.~ thi:~ basis is provided in this doc~nnent. Budgets established for proprietary fun:Js are management budgets and as such are not required to be reported in th~ s document. The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements : i. The City Administrator prepares Mayor and Council no later than each fiscal year. 2. A summary of the proposed budget the propesed budget is available the date of a public hearing is 
a proposed budget: and submits it to the fifteen days prior to the beginnJrlg of 
is published and the public notified that for public inspection. At the same ~Jme, published. 3. A public hearing is held on the proposed budget at least ten days after publication of the call for the hearing. 
14 



CITY OF LEESVILLE JUNE: 30, 1997 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
4. After the holding of the pub]ic hearing and completion of all actioI~ necessary to finalize and implement the budget, the budget is ado|)t(d through passage of an ordinance prior to the commencement of the fisc~l year for which the budget is being adopted. 5. All budgets are controlled at the fund level. Budgetary amendmer~ s involving the transfers of funds from one fund or project to another cu involving increases in expenditures resulting from revenues exceedirkg amounts estimated, require the approval of the City Council. Budgeted amounts shown in the financial statements are as originally adopted or as amended from time to time by the Council. H. Encumbrances Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders and other commitments ~<,* the expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of ~he applicable appropriation, is not employed by the City. I. Cash and Investments Management considers all highly liquid investments (including restrJ c~ed assets ) with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. Investments, which consist of certificates of deposit, are stated at cost, which approximates market value. J. Short-term Interfund Receivables/Payables During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur be% wee~l individual funds for goods provided or services rendered. These receivables ar:d payables are classified as "due from other funds" or "due to other funds" Oli ~Le balance sheet. 
K. Inventories Inventories are valued at cost, which approximates market value, using %he first-in/first-out (FIFO) method. All inventories are accounted for in the Ge~eral Fund as assets when purchased and recorded as expenditures or expenses when consumed. Inventory items consumed by other funds are recorded through the interfund receivable/payable accounts. L. Restricted Assets Certain proprietary fund assets are classified as restricted assets becau.'~e their use is limited by applicable bond covenants or by Council action. VarJcl~s "debt service accounts" segregate resources accumulated for debt service paymel,ts 

15 



CITY OF LEESVILLE JUNE 30, 1997 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
of bonds and certificates of indebtedness. accounts" are used to report resources set or to fund asset renewals and replaceraent may also be used for debt service if "Construction aceounts" are used to report are to be used for construction. 
M. Fixed Assets 

"Capital additions and contingencJe~; aside to meet unexpected contingencJe~ for the water system. These resources funds are not otherwise avaJ ] ab] e. funds received from loan proceeds ~he~ 
General fixed assets are not capitalized in the funds used to acquire c.~ construct them. Instead, capital acquisition and construction are reflected ~s expenditures in governmental funds, and the related assets are reported in %hi~ general fixed assets account group. 9?he City has elected to capitalize public domain ("infrastructures") fixed assets consisting of certain improvements othe~ than buildings, including roads, bridges, sidewalks, and drainage improvement~. Fixed assets acquired after 1971 are valued at historical cost if purchased or ~.~ market value on the date of donation if donated to the City. The cost of fixed assets acquired prior to 1972 is not recorded and is not included in general fixed assets. Assets in the general fixed assets account group are not deprecJateci. Depreciation of buildings, equipment, and vehicles in the proprietary funds :is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life. Interest is capitalized on proprietary fund assets aequired wit]] tax-exemi debt. The amount of interest to be capitalized is calculated by offsettJl interest expense incurred from the date of the borrowing until completion of t] project with interest earned on invested proceeds over the same period. N. Bond Issuance Costs In governmental fund types, bond issuance costs are recognized in the cur~eilt period. Bond issuance costs for proprietary fund types are deferred and amort i zed over the term of the bonds using the bonds-outstanding method, which approximates the effective interest method. Bond issuance costs are recorded as deferred charges. O. Compensated Absences Accumulated leave that is expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources is reported as an expenditure and a fund liability of the governmental fund that will pay it. lu,ounts of accumulated leave that are r1::,t expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources az e reported in the general long-term debt account group. Accumulated leave of proprietary funds is recorded as an expense and liability of those funds as the 
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benefits accrue to employees. No liability is recorded for compensated abse~ice.~ that relate to future services or that are contingent on a specific event that i.~; outside the control of the employer and employee. P. Interfund Transactions Quasi-external transactions are accounted for as revenues, expenditureF o~ expenses. Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund fo~ expenditures/expenses initially made from it that are properly applicable ~ another fund are recorded as expenditures/expenses in the reimbursing fund and es reductions of expenditures/expenses in the fund that is reimbursed. All other interfund transactions, except quasi-external transactions ~c~ reimbursements, a:Le reported as transfers. Nonrecurring or non-routine permanciL~ transfers of equity are reported as residual equity transfers. All other interfuz,c~ transfers are reported as operating transfers. Q. Long-Term Obligations Long-term debt is recognized as a liability of a governmental fund when du~, or when resources have been accumulated ~n the debt service fund for payment early in lhe following year. For other long-term obligations, only that portion expec!tc~d to be financed from expendable available financial resources is reported as a fu~cJ liability of a governmental fund. The remaining portion of such obligations is reported in the general long-term debt account group. Long-term liab~l~ti~s expected to be financed from proprietary fund operations are accounted for Jn ~hose funds. R. Fund Equity Contributed capital is recorded in proprietary funds that have received capital grants or contributions from developers, customers, or other f~nlds. Reserves represent those portions of fund equity not appropriable for expenditure or legally segregated for a specific future use. Designated fund balsnces represent tentatdve plans for future use of financial resources. 
S. Retained Earnings - Reserved Retained earnings - reserved, as reported on the combined balance shee~, represents certain restricted assets accumulated in accordance with the outstar,dJrlg bond indentures which are in excess of related current liabilities payable flc>m restricted assets or which is restricted for construction. 

17 



CITY OF LEESVILLE JUNE 30, 1997 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

T. Supplemental Wages Certain employees of the police and fire departments receive supplemental wages from the State of Louisiana. These supplemental wages are recognized ~s intergovernmental revenue and public safety expenditures irl the General and Sales Tax Special Revenue Funds. U. Memorandum Only - Total Columns Total columns on the primary government financial statements are captioned "memorandum only" to indicate that they are presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in these columns do not present financial position, results of operations, or changes in financial position in conformity with generally accept ed accounting principles. Neither are such data comparable to a consolidatiorh. Interfund eliminations have not been made in the aggregation of this data. 
V. Estimates The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accep%~d accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions theft affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the finan~:J~i] statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reportJhg period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS Under stat~: law, the City may deposit funds with a fiscal agent bank organJ zed under the laws of the State of Louisisna, the laws of any other state in the UnioH, or the laws of the United States. The City may invest in United States bo~ds, treasury notes, or certificates and time deposits of state banks organized undel Louisiana law and national banks having principal offices in Louisiana. At June 30, 1997, the City had cash and investments as follows 
Cash (demand deposits) Inwgstments Certificates of deposit 

UNRESTRICTED $],629,111 618,727 $2,247,838 
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RESTRICTED $673,213 248,404 $921,617 
TOTA!, $2,302,324 
$3,169,45!! 



CITY OF LEESVILLE JUNE 30, 1997 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

At year end, the carrying amount: of the City's deposits (demand deposits alJd certificates of deposit) were $3,169,455, and bank balances were $3,117,678. A summary of collateralization of bank balances is presented below. Insured (Federal deposit insurance) Uncollateralized (In accordance with GAAP - See below) $ 400,0(:0 ~3_1Z.678 $3,11"/, 6"/8 These deposits are stated at cost, which approximates market. Under sts~e law, these deposits (or the resulting bank ba]ances) must be secured by fedez~] deposit insurance or the pledge of securities owned by the fiscal agent bank. The market value of the pledged securities plus the federal deposit insurance must ~,< all times equal the amount on deposit with the fiscal agent:. The uncollateralized amount shown above is secured by pledged securities wJlh a market value of $5,203,220 held in the name of the pledging fiscal agent banks in holding or custodial banks. Even though the pledged securities are considered uncollateralized under GAAP, Louisiana Revised Statutes impose a statut (n y requirement on the custodial bank to advertise and sell the pledged securities within i0 days of being notified by the City that the fiscal agent has failed ~c) pay deposited funds upon demand. 3. RECEIVABLES Receivables at June 30, 1997, consist of the following: 
Accounts Uncollected cycle billings Estimated billings between cycles Other Taxes Franchise taxes Intergovernmental Federal State Local Interest Other Gross receivable Allowance for uncollectible Net receivable 

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES 
18,431 72,023 249,582 424,953 4,004 4,343 689 774,025 -0- $774,025 
19 

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES TO~'A].S $148,124 $148,]24 72,666 

3,616 224,406 _(9,198) $215,208 

72,666 18,431 72,023 249,58:~ 424,953 4,004 7,959 689 998,43] 
$989,233 
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Receivables arising from utility services provided to customers consist ol uncollected billings rendered customers on monthly cycle billings and estimated services provided customers between billing cycles. The allowance fol uncollectible accounts of $9,198 represents the projected uncollectible accounts at June 30, 1997. 4. DUE FROM/TO OTHER FUNDS Amounts due from and to other funds at June 30, 1997, consist of the following: 
FUND General Fund Sales Tax Fund E9]I Communications District Fund Water System Enterprise Fund Civic Center Bonds Debt Service Fund Water System Bonds Debt Service Fund Industrial Park Buildings Construction Fund Sewer System Enterprise Fund Current General obligation bond debt service accounts Specia] Revenue Funds Sales Tax Fund Water System Enterprise Fund General Fund Sewer System Enterprise Fund E911 Communications District Fund Genera] Fund Debt Service Funds Civic Center Bonds Fund General Fund Water System Bonds Fund General Fund 

DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS $ 45,477 235 37,957 

95,000 

142 7,109 Capital Project Funds Industrial Park Buildings Construction Fund General Fund I, 572 Enterprise Funds Sewer System Enterprise Fund General Fund Sales Tax Fund Water System Enterprise Fund 
20 

100,921 112,000 149,991 

DUE TO 

142 7,109 ],57~~ i00,921 19,77( 
45,47r' 112,000 23!; 
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FUND_ Water System Enterprise Fund General Fund Sales Tax Fund Sewer System Enterprise Fund Included in restricted assets Sewer System Enterprise Fund Genera]. Fund 
5. RESTRICTED ASSETS - PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE 

DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS 
550,404 

DUE TO OTHER FUNI)S; 

_.19,770 $570,174 $570,]'14 
Restricted assets, at June 30, 1997, censJsted of the following SEWER $396,789 248,404 19,770 $664,963 

WATER $276,424 
$276,424 

~'9T51 $673,213 248,4(14 19,7,'0 $941,3EI! Restricted assets, by account, at June 30, 1997, consisted of the followJn~ 
Revenue bond debt service account Cash Capita]. additions and contingencies account Cash Construction account Cash General obligation bonds debt service account Cash Investments Due from General Fund Certificate of indebtedness debt service account Cash 
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SEWER WATER ~:p]'A 

273,230 
108,728 248,404 19,770 
__!14,83! $664,963 

$122,115 $122,115 
82,372 

71,937 $276,424 

273,230 
108,728 248,4C>4 19,7)0 
_86~7(,~ $94],387 



6. FIXED ASSETS 

CITY OF LEESVILLE JUNE 30, 1997 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The following is a summary of changes in fixed assets during the fiscal ye.a~ 
GENERAL FI~ED ASSET ACCOUNT GROUP Land Buildings Other improvements Equipment Construction in progress TOTAL GENERAL FIXED ASSETS 

COMPLETED BALANCE CONSTRUCTION/ BALANC~ 2/1/96 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS 6/30/.97 
$ 65,550 47],574 199,262 (5,951) _2aA_93j044 1,387,830 i1488280) _2,392~594 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS Sewer System Land $ 119,876 $ Treatment plant Sewer disposal system 3,240,446 234,640 Equipment and vehicles 134 , 923 1,010 Construction in progress _2_L_'..~ 70..i_i 52._ 3,339,8 i0 Total Sewer System 6,065,397 3t575,460 Water System Land 37,375 Plant and system 5,333,874 270,696 Equipment and vehicles 234,0]4 Construction in progress ~920 Tofal Water System _~55L60~;.L2263 71~616 Total Proprietary Funds $11,670,660 $4,295,076 Accumulated Depreciation 
NET FIXED ASSETS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
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$ $ i19,871: 5,909,962 5,909,96:? 3,475,086 135,9315 
1.5,9099~9~_62} --.-- -0- -0- 9,640,85;' 37,375 5,604,573 234,0]4 

448~.970 -0- _6~33a~,.879 $ -0- ]5,965,73~. .( 3,4 4 ~ ~!8 1 



CITY OF LEESVILLE JUNE 30, 1997 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

In the enterprise funds, the following useful lives are used to cem~~u~e depreciation using the straight-line method. Production and distribution system Buildings and improvements Equipment Vehicles 
25-50 10-25 5-8 3-6 
yes yea yea yea Depreciation expense recorded in the financial statements for the fiscal ye~ ended June 30, 1997, amounted to $113,820 for the Sewer Enterprise Fund ~:~d $220,310 for the Water Enterprise Fund. Significant: construction projects are sunm~arized below: 

North Industrial Park Infrastructure ~ater system Buildings 
(1) (2) 

PROJEC, T 
1,876,000 833,000 2,655,000 

Financing provided by federal Certificates of Indebtedness, Financing provided by a state 

EXPENDED TO DATE 1,235,837 448,920 1,156,757 
REQU ~ RE I 1 FURTHE}< COMMITMENT FINANC~I4G 640,163 180,246 1,498,243 

grants and the proceeds of the Series 1995. grant. 7. LONG-TERM DEBT AND CAPITALIZED LEASES enera] Obliqation Debts: General obligation liabilities obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the City. 

(]) (i) (2) 

are di ~e~t The City has incurred these liabilities to provide funds for the acquisition and construct J .:>n of major additions and to provide funds for major capital projects. The City h.~s also issued general obligation bonds for sewer improvements. In aceordance with GAAP, these bonds are reported in the Sewer Enterprise Fund. The City h~s dedicated ad valorem tax collections for payment of these liabilities~ The City' s obligation relative compensated absences is ~eported as a to the governmental funds' liability f:>r general obligation debt. The City has also issued general obligation certificates of indebtedl~ess. Those certificates, which were issued for sewer and water system improvements, aKl are being repaid from Sewer and Water System revenues, are reported in the respective enterprise funds. Tbe other certificates, which are being repaid from General Fund revenues, are reported in the General Long-Term Debt Account Groul:. 
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Revenue Bonds: The City has issued two types of revenue bonds. The fir~;t type is water revenue bonds whereby the City pledges income derived from the acquired or constructed assets to pay for the debt service. The second type J s sa]es tax revenue bonds whereby the City has pledged revenue from specifically dedicated sales tax collections to pay debt service. Long-term debt at June 30, 1997, consisted of the following 
General Obligation Debt Genera] obligation bonds Water System Refunding Bonds (1991) Sewer System Improvements (1995) Sewerage District No. 3 (1995) Certificates of Indebtedness Water System Improvements ( ] 994 ) Economic. Development (1995) Sewer System Improvements ( ].997 ) Capitalized leases Police cars (1996) Police oars (1997) Public works trucks (].997) Compensated absences Revenue Bonds Sales tax revenue bonds Streets, drainage, and sewer improvements ( 1994 ) Water rew~nue bonds Improvements ( 1989 ) 

INTEREST RATES ENTERPRISE 
6.20-6.70% 2.95% 2.95% 4.50% 6.00% 5.25% 
7.25% 6.00% 6.00% 
5.40-5.45% 11.00% 

2,253,510 2,253,510 1,015,000 565,000 

GENERAl LONG-TE}',~ _D~:BT 
$ 815,000 
595. 000 
25, 48, 53, 149, 
339 28O 0 ? 0 413 

2,400,0D( 947,460 $7,034,480 $4,086,](2 The annual requirements to amortize all debts outstanding as of June 30, ]99~ other than comperlsated absences, including interest of $3,406,209 are as fol]ow~ YEAR ENDING JUNE~ ]998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2002-2015 
ENTERPRISE $ 780,076 785,291 789,399 777,621 785,139 5.50_0~!33 $9,417,659 24 

GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT $ 641,043 641,371 619,873 608,974 616,904 1,831,554 $4,959,719 



CITY OF LEESVILLE JUNE 30, 1997 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Total interest and fiscal charges ~neurred by governmental funds on general lonc:-term debt amounted to $238,687, for the current period. Total interest ai,:! fiscal charges incurred by proprietary funds amounted to $270,177 including capitalized interest of $100,409. During the year ended June 30, 1997, the following changes occurred in ]ol,c term liabilities : 
General Long-Term Debt Account G):oup General obligation bonds Certificates of indebtedness Capitalized leases Compensated absences Sales tax revenue bonds Totals Enterprise Fund Debt General obligation bonds Certificates of indebtedness Capitalized leases Sewer revenue bonds Water revenue bonds Totals 

BALANCE _7_/_I / 96 ADDITIONS REDUCTIONS 
$ 935,000 $ 650,000 39,264 119,674 4,333,938 1,827,936 1,195,000 2,670 50,000 ~~_9_96~ 650 $4,072,256 

111,175 29,739 140,914 2,869,084 565,000 
$3,434,084 

BALANCF: 6_/391!~~ 
$(120,000) $ 8:15,000 (55,000) (23,750) 1/!9_0,000) (388,750) (190,000) (180,000) (2,670) (50,000) ~9,19Q) $(471,860) 

595,000 126,689 149,423 2j4o_0~ o. 9c! 4,086,102 4,503,020 1,58[',0~J0 
__947j460 $7,034,4}{0 General Obligation Bonds. Series 1995 of the Citv of Leesville and Gene1~] Obliqation Bonds~ Series 1995, of Sewer District No. 3 of the City of Leesvi]]e The material provisions of these bond covenants are as fol].ows i. In compliance with the special election held on November 8, 1994, the C~y shall levy and collect annually ad valorem taxes in an amount suff~e~er*t to pay, when due, principal and interest on the bonds. The tax shall be expended only for the purpose of paying promptly when due the princJi~a] and interest on the bonds. 2. The City will, in accordance with prudent wastewater utility treatmlst practice, (i) at all time operate the properties of its System Jn an efficient manner, (ii) maintain the System in good repair working order and operating condition, and (iii) from time to time make all necessary and proper repairs, renewals, replacements, additions, betterments, aiLd improvements with respect to its System so that at all times the bus~ness carried on in connection therewith shall be properly and advantageously conducted. 
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3. The City will keep accurate records and accounts for the System sepalale and distinct from its other records and accounts in accordance w]~h generally accepted government accounting standards. The City will establish a user charge system to assure that each recipient of wastewater treatment services will pay a proportionate share of the costs of operation and maintenance, including any necessary replacement of portions of the System. 5. There shall be established a separately identifiable fund or account to be designated the General Obligation Bond Sinking Fund. All monies from the collection of the ad valorem taxes shall be used solely to pay principal of and interest on the bonds. 6. There shall be established a separately identifiable fund or account to be designated the Sewer System Renewal and Replacement Fund. There s|la'~1 be transferred to this fund, on or before the twentieth (20th) day of each month of each year, beginning no later than the first full month aftez the loan closing, an amount equsl to five percent (5%) of net revenues collected in the prior calendar month until the balanee in the renewal and replacement fund equals to $75,000. All monies in the renewa] and replacement fund may be drawn on and used by the System for the purpose of paying the costs of any unusual and extraordinary maintenance and al;y improvements to the System which will either enhance its revenue producJ ng capacity or provide a higher degree of service. Violation of the indentures for the General Obliqation Bonds, Series 1995 the Citv of Leesville and bl iqation B of ries 1995, of Sewer District No. 3 of the Cit~ of Leesvill9. Funds were not transferred to the Sewer System Renewal and Replacement Fund in accordance with the agreement. Certificates of Indebtedness s~__S_E;rj:~,~s 1994: The agreement requires that the City transfer monthly to a debt service sinking fund one-sixth (1/6) of the next interest payment due and one-twelfth []/12) of the next principal payment due. Violation of the Certificates of Indebtedness, Series 1994 Aqree1!!e! Transfers were not made to the sinking fund as required by the agreement. deficit of $78,2[]2 existed in the sinking fund at year end. Certificates of Indebtedness. Series 1995: City transfer monthly The agreement requires to a debt service sinking fund one-sixth (1/6) of thal the the next interest payment due and one-twelfth (]/12) of the next principal payment due 
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Violatio_n of the Cer ti f ieate_s___Q~_ Inde_bt edness~ Series ]995 A~_ee~eD ~ : Transfers were not made each month to the sinking fund as required by the cow.=nants. Deficits existed in the sinking fund at various times during the yea:. These were funded by periodic ludnp-sum transfers. There was no deficit ~n the sinking fund at year end. Water System Revenue Bonds: bond covenants are as follows The material provisions of water system reven~le i. The City will establish a rate structure sufficient to pay the necessary operating expenses, principal, and interest on the bonds. Revenues after paying operating expenses must be at least 120% of the largest amount of principal and interest maturing in any future fisca3 year. 2. The City will transfer monthly to a debt service sinking fund one-sixth (]/6) of the next interest payment due and one-twelfth (1/12) of the next prineipal payment due. 3. The City will transfer monthly to a reserve fund an amount equal to five percent of the amount transferred to the sinking fund until such time as there has been accumulated an amount equal to the highest combined principal and interest due in any future bond year. Monies in this fund may be used for principal and interest payments, if necessary. 4. The City will transfer monthly to a contingency fund an amount eque] to five percent of the amount transferred to the sinking fund. Moni6s in this fund may be used for extensions, additions, improvements axLd replacements, and to pay principal and interest if funds are not otherw~ se available. 5. The City may not create debt. having priority over these bonds Sales Tax Revenue Bonds: covenants are as follows: The material provisions of sales tax revenue bolld ]. The bonds and interest thereon are payable from the pledge a:Ld dedication of the City's sales tax. 
2. The City will transfer monthly to a (]/6) of the next interest payment next principal payment due. 

27 
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3. The City will establish a reserve fund in the amount of $305,000 Monies in this fund may be used for principal and interest payments if necessary. 4. Parity bonds may be issued if certain conditions are met Violation ~f Sales Tax R~venue Bond Covenants Transfers were not made ca( month to the sinking fund as required by the covenants. Deficits existed ~n t~: sinking fund at various times during the year. These were funded by periodic lureD sum transfers. There was no deficit in the sinking fund at year end. 8. CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL The fo~lowing changes occurred in contributed capital during the year erld(!~i June 30, ]997: 
Balance, beginning of year Additions Treatment Plant Federal grant through the State of Louisiana Improvements Federal grant Other City funds Bal~nee, end of year 9. RESERVED RETAINED EARNINQS 

SEWER $2,695,682 
51,915 175,980 5s 6~/61 $2,982,238 

WATER $1,673,498 
537,386 179%j2~129 $2,390,013 

$4,369,18(I 
5],915 713,366 $5,372,25] 

At June 30, 1997, reserved retained earnings consisted of the following: 
Reserved for Construction General obligation bond debt service Revenue bond debt service Capital additions and contingencies Employee benefits 

SEWER SYSTEM $229,108 145,830 
WATER INTERNAL SYSTEM SERVICE 
44,720 82,372 $374,938 $127,092 
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I0. RESERVED FUND BALANCES At June 30, 1997, reserved fund balances consisted of the following 
Reserved for Economic Development Debt service 

Ii. DESIGNATED FUND BALANCE 

ECONOMIC DEBT DEVELOPMENT SERVICE ~QT~] $405,855 $405,855 $ 657,792 $657,792 $ 405,855 657~792 $I,063,647 
At June 30, 1997, unreserved fund balance ~n the amount of $103,622 was desJ gnated for construction in the Industrial Park Infrastructure Construct J o:* Fund. 12. ACCUMULATED DEFICITS Accumulated deficits existed in the following individual funds at year eTl~ Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund Water System Enterprise Fund $53,09] 45,053 The deficit in the Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund is expected to be funded by future sales tax collections. The deficit in the Water System Enterprise Fund is primarily attribulab]e to depreciation of fixed assets acquired with contributed capital. Combin~I~g contributed capital with the deficit in retained earnings results in a fund equity balance of $2,344,960. 13. AD VALOREM TA)'ES Ad valorem taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January ] of each year. Taxes are levied by the City normally on November 15 and are due on December i. Billed taxes become delinquent on January 1 of the following year. Revenue from ad valorem taxes are budgeted in the year billed. The City bills and collects its own property taxes using the assessed values determined by the %~Lx assessor of Vernon Parish. 
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For the year ended June 30, 1997, taxes of 24.24 mills were levied ol property with assessed values totaling $25,179,]90, and were dedicated as follews: General maintenance purposes Debt service 5.16 19.08 mil]s mills Total taxes levied were $6]0,287. All taxes were paid prior to the end cf the current fiscal year; therefore, no allowance for doubtful accounts is prevJdec~. 14. ENTERPRISE: FUNDS - OPERATIONS The City operates two enterprise lunds which provide sewer and water servic~es to the residents of the City and certain adjacent areas. The following J s a condensed summary of operations and other information for these funds. 
Operating revenues Operating expenses Depreciation Other Operating income Nenoperating revenues (expenses) Ad valorem taxes Interest revenue Interest and fiscal charges Operating transfers out - General Fund Net income (loss) Other information Current capital contributJ:~ns Net working capital Total assets Revenue bonds payable General obligation bonds payable Certificates of indebtedness payable Total equity 15. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS INSURANCE 

SEWER $ 463,646 (113,820) ~2,38!) 117,444 315,164 13,174 (7,076) _/175,000) 263,706 
286,556 425,448 9,448,403 4,507,020 565,000 4,273,855 

WATER T O~AI~ $1,088,107 $ 1,55],75~ 
(220,309) _5L~I09) 303,689 
18,555 (162,693) _(500,000) $ (340,449) 

1,015,000 2,344,960 

(334,]29 421.133 315,164 31,729 (]69,'/69) ~15,Q00) $ (76,743) 
$ 1,003,071 53,493 14,249,]90 947,460 4,507,D~0 ],580,000 6,6]8,8]5 

The city maintains a trust to finance employee hospitalization/health insurance and certain employee life insurance. Resources accumulated for heal~h coverage in the trust are accounted for in the Employee Benefits Insurance Fund fan internal service fund). Under this program, the Employee Benefits Insurance F~:nd 
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normally provides coverage for a maximum of $15,000 for each covered employee".! (and dependent's, if applicable} qualifying health claims. The Fund's normal aggregate retained loss per plan year is $2,000,000. '/?he Employee Benef j t!~ Insurance Fund purchased commercial insurance for health claims in excess o~ coverage provided and for certain employee life insurance. Under the terms of the trust agreement, the net assets of the Fund, $153,087, at June 30, 1997, may cnt]y be used to provide employee benefits. All funds of the City and covered employees participate in the program ancJ make payments to the Employee Benefits Insurance Fund. The claims liability of $21,098 reported in the Fund at June 30, 1997, is based upon GAAP, which requires that a liability for claims be reported if information prior to the issuance of the financial statements indicates that it is probable that a liability has bee:~ incurred at the date of the financial statements and the amount of the loss cau be reasonably estimated. Changes in the Fund's claims liability amount in the fJ.~c~i year ending June 30, 1997, were as follows: Balance, beginning of year Current year claims Claim payments Balance, end of year 16. RISK MANAGEMENT 
$ 8,26? 253,92( 1241L089 $ 2],09~ 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft o! damage and destruction of assets, errors and omissions, injuries to employees, a1~ci natural disasters. The City carries commercial insurance as outlined in the fol~lowing table. Settled claims did llot exceed commercial coverage for any of the past three fiscal years. 
workmen "s compensation Auto liability Commercial general liability Law enforcement officers" liability (deductible $5,000) City-owned buildings and equipment - fire, lightning, and extended coverage 

IJM]'I S OF _C O_V_J!:RA q 1:i Statutc: y 500,000 1,500,030 500,0el0 2,0]7,600 The City covers all other losses, claim settlements, and judgments fzrm, General Fund resources. The City currently reports all of its risk management activities in its General Fund. Claims expenditures and liabilities are repolled when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of that loss car~ be reasonably estimated. 
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The City is party to legal proceedings involving suits filed against the C~ty for various reasons. Some of these suits claim damages that are material i~ amount. The amount of losses, if any, that may arise from these suits can not b6 reasonably estimated. Management does not believe that the City is exposed to an~ material losses not covered by insurance. No provision for losses is included Jl the financial statements. 17. COMPENSATION PAID TO MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL In accordance with the requirements of the Office of the Legislative Auditor, State of Louisians, the following reflects compensation paid to the Mayor ~n<:l members of the City Council of the City of Leesville, Louisiana, for the fiscal year ending June 30, 1997. Mayor James S. Shapkoff, Jr. Council Me~ers William M. Elliott Jerry L. Jeane Marshal J. Patton Rickey O. Stevens Alice F. Upshaw Rodney G. Wells 18. PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEMS 

$12,00C; 4,725 4,2{)[I 4,725 4,200 4,2(:0 4.725 
The city contributes to three .~tatewide cost-sharing, multiple-emp]oye~, defined benefit public employee retirement systems. These consist of the Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana (MPERS) , the Firefighter.~;' Retirement System (PRS), and the Louisiana State Employees ' Retirement Syst~n ( LASERS ). MPERS. Membership is mandatory for all full-time police officers employed by the City, provided they meet statutory criteria. Any member is eligible for normal retirement benefits after he has been a member of the System for one (I) year, if he has twenty-five (25) years of creditable service at any age, or ~f .~*e has twenty (20) years of creditable service and is age fifty (50), or has twelve (12) years of creditable service and is age fifty-five (55). Benefit rate<., ate three and one-third percent (3 1/3%) of final compensation per number of years of creditable service not to exceed one hundred percent (100%) . Benefi t ~hd contribution requirements are established by state law. MPERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and req'a~ ied supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing to Mun~cSDal Police Employees' Retirement System, P. O. Box 94095, Baton Rouge, LA 70804-9095. 
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Members are currently required to contribute seven and one-half percent (7 1/2%) of their annual, salary to the system, including supplemental pay. The ('.ify contributes an aetuarially determined rate, presently set at nine percent (9%) cd the member's salary, including supplemental pay. FRS. This Plan is a defined benefit pension plan covering firemen employed by a municipality, parish, or fire protection district of the State hired aft~ December 31, 1979. Employees with twenty (20) or more years of service who have attained age fifty (50), employees who have twelve (12) years of service who have attained age fifty-five (55) , or employees who have twenty-five (25) years o~ service at any age are entitled to annual pension benefits equal to three ssc~ one-third percent ( 3 1/3%) of their average final compensation based on % he thirty-six (36) consecutive months of highest pay multiplied by their total yen~ s of service, not to exceed one hundred percent (100%) . Employees may elect ~ o receive their pension benefits in the form of a joint and survivor annuity. ~lf employees terminate before rendering twelve (12) years of service, they forfeit the right to receive the portion of their accumulated plan benefits attributable %o the:~r employer'.'; contributions. Benefits are payable over the employees' lives ill the form of a monthly annuity. Benefit and contribution requirements a~e established by state law. FRS issues a publicly available financial report that inc~ludes financial statements and required supplementary information. That repo~:t may be obtained by writing to Firefighters' Retirement System, 3100 Brentwo.:x~ Drive, Baton Rouge, LA 70809. Members are currently required annual salary, including supplemental actuarially determined rate, presently including supplemental pay. LASERS. All 
to contribute eight percent (8%) of their pay to the Plan. The City contributes ~rl at nine percent (9%) of the member's salary, 

state employees except certain classes of employees spec~f~ca]]y excluded by statute become members of the system as a condition of employment. Statewide elected officials and offJc;ials appointed by the governor may, at their- option, become members of the System. The only member of this System from the City of Leesville is the city court judge. The age and years of creditable seYv~ce required Jn order for a member to retire with full benefits are established by Statute and vary depending on the member's employer and job classification, qhe substantial majority of members may retire with full benefits at ages ranging f~om any age upon completing thirty (30) years of creditable service to age sixty (60) upon completing ten (i0) years of creditable service. The basic annual retirement benefit for substantially all members is equal to two and one-half percent (2 1/2%) of average compensation multiplied by ~tle nu~er of years of creditable service plus three hundred dollars ($300). Averelge compensation is defined as the member's average annual earned compensation fol ~ he period of thirty-six ( 36 ) consecutive months of employment during which ~ he 
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CITY OF I,EESVILLE JUNE 30, 1997 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

men,her's aggregate earned compensation was greatest. The maximum annual retirement benefit cannot exceed the lesser of one hundred percent (100%) of avel age compensation or certain specified dollar amounts or actuaria]ly determined monetary limi'~s which vary depending upon the member's age at retirement. Judges and coult officers and certain elected officials receive an additional annual retirement benefit equal to one percent (1%) of average compensation multiplied by the nu~>e: of years of creditable service in their respective capacity. As an alternative t< the above basic retirement benefit, a member may elect to receive his retiremen[ benefits under any one of four different options providing for a reduced retirement benefit payable throughout his life with certain benefits being paid to h~ s designated beneficiary after his death. Benefit and contribution requirements are established by state law LASERS issues a publicly available financial report that ~ncludes finaecia] statements and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained b} writing to P. O. Box 44213, Baton Ronge, LA 70804-4213. Judges, court officers, and legislators contribute eleven and one-half percent (ll 1/2%) of their salary te the System. The City contributes ~,i actuarially determined rate, presently set at ]2.4% of the member's annual salary. Required contributions. The City made the following required contribnt:Lo~ s to the various pension plans: YEAR ENDING 06/30/97 06/30/96 06/30/95 19. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN 
$41,793 35,113 30,256 

ERS $22,695 18,830 21,138 
LASERS $446 432 428 $64,934 54,3?5 51,8~2 

The City sponsors a defined contribution pension plan (the Plan) to provide benefits at retirement to all full-tlme employees who elect to participate. The Plan is administered by Public Employees Benefit Services Corporation. At June 3(i, 199~, there were 32 participants in the Plan. Plan members are required ~o contribute 5% of covered salary. The City is required te contribute 9% of ~]:e participant's covered salary. Plan provisions and contribution requirements a~e established by and may be amended by the City Council. Participant contribut~oI:s were $29,958 for the year ending June 30, 1997. Employer contributions were $81,039, including $30,660 related to the previous fiscal year. Participant ~i!Ld employer contributions are recognized in the period that the contributions are chli:~. 
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20. SUPPLEMENTAL PAY 

CITY OF LEESVILLE JUNE 30, 1997 NOTES TO FTNANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Certain employees meeting statutory qualifications in the police and f~1"e departments receive supplemental pay directly from the State of Louisiana. This supplementa~ pay in the amount of $110,412 is recognized as revenue sild expenditures in the General Fund and Sales Tax Special Revenue F~nd as follows: 
General Fund Police Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund Fire 21. EXCESS OF E:XPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS The following individual governmental funds had expenditures, transfers out, exceeding appropriations as approved in the budget: 
Genera] Fund Special Revenue Funds Sales Tax Fund 22. LEGAL COMPLIanCE 

E_X I~ENJ)_ITTU_RE S $2,364,462 1,439,119 
APPROPRIATIONS $2,186,920 1,361,715 

$ 73,290 37~122 $110,412 

$17~,542 
The follow~ing violations of state statutes occurred during the fiscal yea 
(i) Complete records, as required by ]Louisiana Revised Statutes for fi>:l~d assets for which the City iS accountable, are not maintained. 
(2) Actual expenditures exceeded budgeted expenditures by five percent (5%) or more in the General Fund and Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund. I z* both cases the excess of actual expenditures over budgeted expendi~u] es was due to year end audit adjustments. 3) An excess of expenditures over available resources was inadverte~*~ ly budgeted in the Sales Tax Special Revenue Funds. (4) A budget for the HUD Voucher Program Special Revenue Fund wa.,~ ;~ot officially adopted. 
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COMBINING, INDIVIDUAL FUND, AND ACCOUNT GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES 
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GENERAL FUND Thi.~; is the general operating fund of the City and is used to account ~ (,z operations traditionally associated with a city which are not required to be accounted for in another fund. 
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CITY OF LEESVILLE, LOUISIANA GENERAL FUND BALANCE SIiEET JUNE 30, 1997 
ASSETS Cash Inw~stments Receivables Taxes Intergovernmental Interest Other Due from other funds Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund E911 Communications District Special Revenue Fund Water System Enterprise Fund Inventory 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE LIABILITIES Accounts and contracts payable Other current liabilities Due to other funds Civic Center Bonds Debt Service Fund Water System Bonds Debt Service Fund Industrical Park Buildings Construction Fund Sewer System Enterprise Fund Operating General obligations bonds debt service accounts Total Liabilities FUND BALANCE Unreserved - undesignated TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 

EXHIBIT F1 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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CITY OF LEESVILLE, LOUISIANA GENERAL FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997 

REVENUES Taxes Licenses and permits Charges for services Intergovernmental Fines and forfeitures Interest Other Total Revenues EXPENDITURES Current General government Public safety Public works Economic development Debt service Capital outlay Total Expenditures EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) Operating transfers in (out) Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund Sewer System Enterprise Fund Water System Enterprise Fund Law Enforcement Block Grant Special Revenue Fund Certificate of Indebtedness Debt Service Fund Airport Construction Fund Industrial Park Buildings Construction Fund Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

BUDGET ACTUAL 327,385 $ 399,918 304,660 72,420 ]72,545 ]34,500 10,650 -__-- 33x040 1,055,200 
467,020 1,014,965 497,870 51,990 .__ 6i 0~D/~75 2.092,920 

439,172 1,101,977 517,670 55,011 27,419 508~//37 2_~]~p2,086 

EXHIBIT F--? VARIANCE FAVORABLI!: i UNFAVORABI,E $ 72,533 (3,732 227 120,389 7,643 (1,991 _6L~9~4 188,629 
27,848 (87,012} (19,800) (3,02]) (27,419) 10~238 

(1,037,720 (948,257) 89,463 
150,000 175,000 500,000 
(94,000 

1.50,000 175,000 500,000 (2,374) (94,000) (56,171) __I19,831) 

-0- -0-- - O- 
-0- (56,]7] 

___ 7_3~000 652,624 /_78,37(; EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES (306,720) (295,633) ]],08 FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 616,854 616,854 FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 3 10~134 $~~.321, _22j_l $ ] ], O8~! The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 39 



REVENUES Taxes Ad valorem Franchise Other Totals 

CITY OF LEESVILLE, LOUISIANA GENERA], FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES - BUDGET AND ACTU~ YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997 

Licenses and permits Occupational licenses Beer and liquor permits Building permits Other licenses and permits Totals Charges for Services Animal shelter Inspection fees Police department fees Totals Intergovernmental Federal Law enforcement State Video poker commissions State tobacco tax State beer tax Fire insurance rebate Highway maintenance Supplemental pay - police DARE Other Totals Fines and forfeitures City court Interest Other Miscellaneous TOTAL REVENUES 

BUDGET ACTUAL 
133,700 $ 134,255 186,285 7 4~00 327,385 
274,000 21,560 7,400 1,700 304,660 
46,560 8,400 _17,460 72,420 

258,308 7,355 399,918 
277,300 14,182 7,554 --1,892 300,928 
46,691 8,662 72,647 

EXHIBIT F-3 
VARIANCE FAVORAB],E ( H~2AVO_Rm~L~ 

131 262 ~(_]66) 227 
19,440 26,519 7,079 59,500 29,100 22,020 12,250 10,350 14,210 --_ 5,675 172,545 
134,500 10,650 

66,612 38,798 37,137 12,248 10,350 73,290 19,079 8.901 292,934 

7,]12 9,698 15,117 (2 -0- 73,2911 4,869 120,389 
142,147 7,647 8,659 (],99] 

___33,040 26,596 $ i~_0~ 200 $1,243 8x8~2_9 $188~629 
The aecompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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CITY OF LEESVII,LE, LOUISIANA GENERA[, FUND STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997 

CURRENT General Government Executive Department Salaries Payroll taxes Insurance Travel Public re].atJons Telephone and utilities Other Totals Finance Department: Salaries Payroll taxes Insurance Telephone and utilities Other Tota]s Administrative Department Salaries Payroll taxes Retirement Insurance Travel office supplies and expenses Telephone and utilities Other Totals Legal Department Salaries Payroll taxes Other Totals Building Inspection Department Salaries Payroll taxes Insurance Other Totals 

BUDGET ACTUAL 

46,760 3,650 6,355 14,300 4,000 1,300 1,000 760 78,125 810 78,241 

EXHIB]T F-4 (Continued) VARIANCE FAVORABL} IUNFAVORABLE 

3 (12) -o- (245) 2 (252) (3) (37) (162~ 6O (]31 31 58 __C5o) (116) 
-0- 2 (9) 
(2 (V 15 (29( 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 
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CITY OF LEESVILLE, LOUISIANA GENEP~IJ FUND STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997 

General Expenses Liability insurance Uniforms Office supp].ies and expenses Utilities Payroll taxes Publishing Dues Mayor's Women's Commission Operating supplies Building maintenance Computer and software maintenance Equipment maintenance Court costs Professional services Garbage service Other Totals Total General Government Public Safety Police Department Salaries State supplemental pay Payroll taxes Retirement Insurance Travel Training Uniforms Office supplies Telephone and utilities Dues Operating supplies Gas and oil Repairs and ~aintenance Prisoner expenses DARE program Other Totals 

BUDGET 

36,000 17,500 2,500 36,500 ]5,490 4,800 2,600 2,850 20,100 22,200 ]5,500 2,800 i,i00 12,000 2,000 9,350 ~03 290 467,020 
559,230 47,935 48,300 180,250 7,550 i0,000 5,050 2,000 17,000 4,200 22,000 12,000 17,750 27,000 3,690 10,970 974,925 

EXHIBIT F-4 (Continued) 
VARIANCE FAVORABL~: ACTUAL ( UNFA_VORAI}~,~I 19,751 

26,362 ]8,818 2,689 20,558 15,487 4,874 2,987 3,021 20,272 22,567 15,443 2,791 1,084 12,000 1,879 " j:79 0~/Z72 439,172 
567,560 73,290 48,183 47,941 ]65,653 8,171 12,808 5,073 2,221 18,184 4,418 22,624 16,239 20,274 33,049 3,689 i~87~ 1,061,253 

(I 2 3 8 - 0 - 67 5 84 
9,638 (1,318) (189~ 15,942 3 (74) (38~) (17]) (]7?) (367) 57 ~J ~6 -0-- 121 _ i L!~ 27,848 

(86,328) The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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CITY OF LEESVILLE, LOUISIANA GENERAL FUND STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997 

Animal Shelter Salaries Payroll taxes Supplies Veterinarian expenses Other Totals Total Public Safety Public Works Public Works Department Salaries Payroll taxes Retirement Insurance 

Shop Department Salaries Payroll taxes Retirement Insurance Supplies Totals Total Public Works Economic Development Airport Management fees Insurance Utilities 
Totals Other Economic Development Programs TechnJcal assistance Economic development office expenses Totals Total Economic Development 

BUDGET ACTUAL 33,030 $ 33,204 2,600 1,]00 1,800 ____1,510 ___40,040 1,014,965 

497.870 
9,600 000 000 i00 405 105 
15,390 7,495 22,885 51,990 

2,606 1,095 2,267 __ 1,552 40,724 1,101,977 

32,465 2,48] 1,736 5,825 7,519 50,076 517,670 

3 
600 665 879 859 073 5]] 587 
15,390 8,034 __23,424 55,011 

EXHIBIT F-4 (Cont Ji~ued) 
VAR I AN C E FAVORABLE i UNFAVORABI } (174 (6 5 

-O-- (2;L) (~) (40) 

(2,482 
-0-- (~ ~539 (3,021 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 
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CITY OF LEESVILLE, LOUISIANA GENERAL FUND STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997 

DEBT SERVICE Principal Interest Total Debt Service CAPITAL OUTLAY General government Police PuLblic works Total Capital Outlay TOTAL EXPENI)ITURES 

BUDGET ACTUAL 
-0- 
4,875 33,200 ___23,000 ___61,075 

23,750 3,669 27,419 
6,470 4,611 __~39,756 __~0,837 

EXHIBIT F--4 (Concluded) 
VARIANCE FAVORABI,E ~UNFAVORABLE 
$(23,750 ~6669 (27,4]9 
(1,595 28,589 i023~ $~Q~920 $2_~!192, 086 $19_9~ 166~ 

The accompanying notes are an ~ntegral part of the financial statements 

44 



SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are ]ega~[!y restricted to expenditures for particular purposes. SALES TAX FUND J s used to account for revenues generated by the one cent sales alld use tax. Proceeds are dedicated as follows: debt service of sales tax bonds; operations of public works ; operations of sewer system; operations of f i :~ e department; and operations of recreation department. HUD VOUCHER PROGRAM FUND accounted for revenues received from a Federal rental subsidy program. This program was transferred to the Leesville Housing Authority during the fiscal year ending June 30, 1997. Remaining monies in this fur~d represent administrative fees earned in prior years. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND is used to account for monies available for ecor~oiitic development purpeses. E911 COMMUNICATIONS DISTRICT FUND is used te account for the intergovernment ~ ] agreement with the Vernon Parish Police Jury and the Vernon Parish Commun~cat~orLs District for the operation of the Vernon Parish enhanced 911 emergency system. Funding is provided by a telephone surcharge collected by South Central Bell. 
LAW ENFORCEMENT EI,OCK GRANT FUND is used to account for revenues received floral a federal program for crime prevention. 
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CITY OF LEESVILLE, LOUISIANA SALES TAX SPECIAL REVENUE FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT) - BUDGET AND ACTUAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997 

REVENUES Sales tax Intergovernmenta]. - state s.upplemental pay Charges for services - recreation Interest Other Tota] Revenues EXPENDITURES Current General government Salaries Payroll taxes R~tirement Insurance Travel Professional fees Other Total General Government Public safety-Fire Department Salaries State supplemental pay Payroll taxes Retirement Insurance Training Uniforms office supplies and expenses Telephone and utilities Supplies Gas and oil Repairs and maintenance Other Total Public Safety Culture and recreation Recreation Salaries Payroll taxes Retirement Insurance Telephone and utilities Supplies Gas and oil Repairs and maintenance Items purchased for resale Garbage service Totel Recreation 

BUDGET ACTUAL $1,205,000 $1,194,623 
111,600 975 ].,323,425 

264,120 

86,700 7,000 325 

37,122 120,141 971 7,293 1,360,150 
75,035 5,676 6,124 9,327 2,112 5,000 __. 1,336 104,610 

86,994 7,029 319 13,284 13,822 22,677 2,617 18,813 5,687 174,175 

EXHIBIT G-3 (Cont.Jnue~ VARIANCE FAVORAB] ,E LVNFAVORA~L~; 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 
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CITY OF LEESV]LLE, LOUISIANA SALES TAX SPECIAL REVENUE FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT) - BUDGET AND ACTUAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997 

Recreation Complex Salaries Payroll taxes Retirement Professional fees Telephone and utilities Supplies Repairs and maintenance Items purchased for resale Other Total Recreation Complex Neighborhood Center Salaries Payroll taxes Retirement Insurance Telephone and utilities Supplies Repairs and maintenance Other Total Neighborhood Center Total Culture and Recreation Capital Outlay Culture and recreation Total Expenditures 

BUDGET ACTUAL 9,500 $ 10,344 

47,120 3,615 775 4,325 4,800 24,500 6,500 7OO ___923~535 301,490 
_ 31~875 877x715 

812 371 6,600 3,964 12,098 2,488 19,333 ~03 59,813 
47,116 3,637 774 4,410 5,072 25,365 6,539 698 93,611 32"7,599 
31,767 9_~55,119 

EXHIBIT G-3 (Concluded) VARIANCE FAVORABLE /UNFAVORABLE $ (844 (62 (72 -0-- 

4 (22) ] (85) (2?2) (865} (39) 2 ~76) (26,]09) 
____! 9 V C3Z~4 o ~t EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURF.S 445,7 I0 405,031 ( 40,679 OTHER FINANCING USES Operating translers out General Fund Debt Service Funds Total Other Financing Uses (150,000) I_3340~Q9000 ) .(_48~ o~q~_oo ) (150,000) /334,000) /&84,000) -0- -0-. -0-. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES (38,290) (78,969) (40,6"29 FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR _ 25~ 878 ~25,87_8 FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), END OF YEAR -( $.(12~41~_2) $~=%~,091) $/49.~679 The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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EXH] B]~ G-- VARIANCE FAVORABLE IUNFAVORABI,E 

ements 

$669 ~07 $ 69~ 



 
CITY OF I,EESVILLE, LOUISIANA E911 COMMUNICATIONS DISTRICT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997 

REVE:NUES Charges for services - telephone surcharges Interest Other Total Revenues EXPENDITURES Current Public Safety Salaries Payroll taxes Retirement Insurance Office supplies and expenses Telephone and utilities Supplies Gas and oil Other Capital outlay Total Expenditures EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES ~;VER EXPENDITURES FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR UND BALANCE, END OF YEAR 

BUDGET ACTUAL 
$225,000 2,200 _1,165 228,365 
109,800 8,300 11,530 21,950 1,210 81,170 5,000 1,000 485 57~725 298~170 

$227,720 2,338 __~ 3~/6060 231,418 
109,921 8,368 11,568 22,211 1,294 81,403 5,550 1,078 324 36~/8789 278,506 

EXHIBIT G-6 
VARIANCE FAVORABL~: (UNFAVORABI.} 
$ 2,720 ]38 _ ]9~ 3,053 
(121 (68 (3[I (261 (84 (233 (550 (78 261 1__9~664 

(69,805) (47,088) 22,7]7 146a 539 146,539 
$ 76~ 734 $9~_5_! $22.~ ? ] 7 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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CITY OF LEESVILLE, LOUISIANA LAW ENFORCEMENT BLOCK G}{ANT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTU~L YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997 

REVENUES Intergovernmental Interest 
BUDGET ACTUAL - federal grant $23,736 Total Revenues EXPENDITURES Current Public Safety - Police Department Sa].aries and payroll taxes Capital outlay Total Expenditures 

23,736 
6,110 2--0,000 2__6,110 

$17,656 140 17,796 
1,193 !.8,369 

EXHIBIT G-7 VARIANCE FAVORABLE (UNFAVORAB!~} $(6,080) __j4~ (5,940) 
4,9]7 
6=598 EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES (2,374) (],766) 608 OTH]~R FINANCING SOURCES Operating transfers in General Fund EXCESS OF REVENUES AN]) OTHER FINANCING SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR 

2~ 374 _.~374 
-0- -0- 
$= -0-- 

608 -0- 
0- 
608 -(i- $:, 608 $= 6_.._ (~8 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 
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DEBT SERVICE FUNDS These funds account for resources accumulated for payment of of general obligation debt consisting of the following: Civic Center pubiic improvement bonds, dated February 2, 1972, secured as to payment by ad valorem tax assessed on all property and improvements in the City of Leesville. Final payment on these bonds were made during the year ended June 30, 1997. Water System public improvement bonds, dated April i, 1983, secured as to payment by sd valorem tax assessed on all property and improvements in the City of Leesville. Public improvement bonds, Series ST-1992, secured as to payment by the revenues of the special one percent sales and use tax levied and colleeted by the City. Certificates of Indebtedness, Series 1995, secured by and payable as to principal and interest sole].y from a p]edge and dedication of the excess of annual revenues of the City. 

54 



TOTAL ASSETS FUN[) BALANCES Reserve/ for debt service Unreserved - undesignated TOTAL FUND B~ANCES 
Sh~0A% 
$ L o_!_~ 
$3~274 $573_a~_544 $49--~x--974 $658,831 
$34,274 $573,544 $49,974 $657,792 1,0!9 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 
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CITY OF LEESVILLE, LOUISIANA DEBT SERVICE FUNDS COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES ~N FUND BALANCES YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997 

REVENUES Ad valorem taxes Interest Total Revenues EXPENDITURES - DEBT SERVICE Principal retirement Interest and fiscal charges Total Expenditures 

CIVIC CENTER BONDS $12,]65 12,165 
15,000 925 15~_92~i 

WATER SYSTEM BONDS SALES TAX BONDS $150,986 $ ~~~xi152 14,97'8 152,138 14,978 
i05,000 59~735 i_6 4 ~/7_35 

190,000 135,358 325~358 

EXHIBIT li-2 
CERTIFICATES OF INDEBTEDNESS TOTAl $ $ 163,15] 1,827 _]7,957 1,827 18],]08 
55,000 39,000 94,000 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES (3,760) (12,597) (310,380) (92,173) (4~8,9]0 
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES Operating transfers in General Fund Sales Tax Fund Industrial Park Infrastructure Construction Fund Total Other Financing Sources -0-- -0- 

334,000 94,000 94,000 3134.000 26,535 _ 2(.,[!35 334,00([ 120,535 EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES (3,760) (12,597) 23,620 28,362 35,625 FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR _4~779 _4~87!i 549,924 21,612 _ 623,186 FUND BALANCES END OF YEAR $__]~0]~9_ $__3~274 $ 573~_544_ $ 4A9~9 974 $ (,58,8]] 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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REVENUES Ad valorem taxes 

CITY OF LEESVILLE, LOUISIANA CIVIC CENTER BONDS DEBT SERVICE FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL YEAR ENI)ED JUNE 30. 1997 

EXPENDITURES - DEBT SERVICE Principal retirement Interest and fiscal charges Total Expenditures 

BUDGET ACTUAL 
EXHIBIT H--3 
VARIANCB FAVORABI,}: 

$12,000 $12,165 $ 165 
15,000 925 '15L925 15,000 925 15.,925 EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES (3,925) (3,760) FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR FUND BALANCE. END OF YEAR 4L779 4.,779 $ 854 $ 1,0199 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 
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CITY OF LEESV]LLE, LOUISIANA WATER SYSTEM BONDS DEBT SERVICE FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997 

REVENUES Ad valorem taxes Interest Total Revenues EXPENDITURES - DEBT ~~;ERVICE Principal retirement Interest and fiscal charges Total Expenditures 

BUI)GET ACTUAL 
$149,605 __hA 00 150,705 
105,000 _59~735 ! 6~7_3_5 

$150,986 i,]52 152,].38 
105,000 59L73-5 164,[]3__5 

EXHIBIT H-,I 
VARIANCE'. FAVORABLE ~N_FAVOO_RA_B] !E 
$ 1,38] 52 1,433 
-0- -0- -0- 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES (14,030) (12,597) 1,433 
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) Operating transfer in _j~o o o -o- i!5 ~ooo 
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND 970 (12,597) (]3,567 OTHER FINANCING SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES FUND BALANCE:, BEGINNING OF YEAR __4~_871 44~6 871 
FUN]) BALANCEj END OF YEAR 

-0- $ 4~._841 $ 34~274 $//3~5567 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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REVENUES Interest 

CITY OF LEESVILLE, LOUISIANA SALES TAX BONDS DEBT SERVICE FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997 

EXPENDITURES - DEBT SERVICE P]2incipal retirement Interest and Total fiscal, charges Expenditures 

BUDGET $ 14,425 
190,000 135.L360 325L360 

ACTUAL $ ].4,978 
190,000 _135,358 3___25,358 EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES (310,935) (3]0,380 OTHER FINANCING SOURCES Operating transfers in Sales Tsx Fund 334.L000 334,000 EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES 23,065 23,620 FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 549,924 FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR 549,924 

$_ 572L989 $ 573,544 

EXHIBIT }:[- 5 
VARIANC~ FAVORABI,~: ( UNFAVORABI,E ) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 
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REVENUES Interest 

CITY OF LEESVILLE, LOUISIANA CERTIFICATES OF INDEBTEDNESS DEBT SERVICE FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPF, NDITURES, AN[) CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -- BUDGET AND ACTUAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997 

EXPENDITURES - DEBT SERVICE Principal retirement Interest and fiscal charges Total Expenditures 

BUDGET $ 1,775 
55,000 - 3_9~_Q 0_00 94_~Q00 

ACTUAL $ 1,827 
55,000 39,000 94~000 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES (92,225) (92,~73) 
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) Operating transfers in (out) General Fund Zndustrial Park Infrastructure Construction Fund Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

94,000 j7~6@) _56~360 
94,000 2__f~i~535 12~0,535 EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES (35,865) 28,362 FUN]) BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 2~I 612 21,612 FUND BALANCE, END OF Y $t~253) $4!!,974 

EXHIBIT H-{ 
VARIANCE FAVORADI,E (UNFAVORABLE 5 2 
-0- -0- -0- 
(52 
-0-- 6_4~j] 7 s 
64,227 __~0: $~A22:1 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources to be used fc} the acquisition or construction of major capital additions, other than those l/nanced by proprietary funds. AIRrORT CONSTRUCTION FUND was used to account for construction of improvements at the airport. Funding was provided prJlnarily by federal and state grants. ~he project was completed during the year ended June 30, 1997. INDUSTRIAL PARK INFRASTRUCTURE CONSTRUCTION FUND is used to account t{~I" con~truction of the infrastructure at the North Industrial Park. Funding ~ s provided primarily by federal economic development grants and by proceeds from tLe Certificates of Indebtedness, Series - 1995. INDUSTRIAL PARK BUILDINGS CONSTRUCTION FUND is used to account for constructJeiL of bui[Ldings at the North Industrial Park. Funding is provided primarily by a state economic development grant of $2,655,000. LCDBG CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND was used to account for the proceeds of an LCDBG grarlt for the acquisition of certain equipment for the City's new wastewater treatment plant. In accordance with LCDBG requirements, the grant is shown in a separate capital projects fend. The equipment was also recorded as contributed capitaJ in the Sewer System Enterprise Fund. 
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REVENUES Intergovernmental State 

CITY OF LEESVILLE, LOUISIANA AIRPORT CONSTRUCTION FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ~D CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997 

EXPENDITURES - CAPITAL OUTLAY Economic Development - Airport Improvements Engineering Construction Other costs Total Expenditures EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES OTHER FINANCING SOURCES Operating transfers in General Fund EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR FUND BALANCE. END OF YEAR 

EXHIBIT ]-3 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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CITY OF LEESVILLE, LOUISIANA INDUSTRIAL PARK INFRASTRUCTURE CONSTRUCTION FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANCES IN FUND BALANCE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997 

REVENUES Intergovernmental Federal Interest Total Revenues EXPENDITURES - CAPITAL OUTLAY Economic Develo~nent - Infrastructure Engineering Construction Other costs Total Expenditures DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) Operating transfer out Certificate of Indebtedness Debt Service Fund EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR 

EXHIBIT ]-4 
$ 194,134 198,542 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 
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1,027 288,9]2 ~0~ 29~99~! 92,453 
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CITY OF LEESVILLE, LOUISIANA INDUSTRIAL pARK BUILDINGS CONSTRUCTION FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997 

REVENUES Intergovernmental - state EXPENDITURES - CAPITAL OUTLAY Economic Development - Buildings Engineering Construction Other costs Total Expenditures DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES OTHER FINANCING SOURCES Operating transfer in Genera] Fund EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES FUN[) BALANCE, BEGINNING OF yEAR FUN[) BALANCE, END OF YE 

EXHIBIT ]-5 
$1,003,029 
127,~;97 873,~45 

- 0- - 0. 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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CITY OF LEESVILLE, LOUISIANA LCDBG CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997 

REVENUES Intergovernmental - state EXPENDITURES - Sewer System Equipment CAPITAL OUTLAY Improvements 
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR FUND BALANC~~~,'N]~_~F_~ 

EXHIB]T 3-6 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 
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residents of the City. All activities necessary to provide such services aJe accounted for in this fund, includ~ ng but not limited to, administrat J on, operations, maintenance, financing and related debt service, and bill~ng a1~d collection. WATER SYSTEM FUIqD iS used to account for water services provided to the resSc~ents of "~he City. All activities necessary to provide such services are accounted lot: in this fund, including but not limited to, administration, operations, maintenance, financing and related debt service, and billing and collection. 
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CITY OF LEESVILLE, LOUISIANA ENTERPRISE FUNDS COMBINING BALANCE SHEET JUNE 30, 1997 
ASSETS CURRENT ASSETS Cash Investments Receivables Accounts receivable (Net of allowance fer doubtful accounts) Other Due from other funds General Fund Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund Water System Enterprise Fund Total Current Assets RESTRICTED ASSETS Revenue bond debt service accounts Capital additions and contingencies account Construction account General obligation bonds debt service accounts Certificates of indebtedness debt service accounts Total Restricted Assets PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT Property, plant, and equipment Accumulated depreciation Net Preperty, Plant, and Equipment OTHER ASSETS Bond issuance costs - net Certificates of indebtedness issuance costs - net Total Other Assets TOTAL ASSETS 

SEWER SYSTEM 
42,819 
67,220 100,921 112,000 149.991 

WATER SYSTEM 
2,205 58,227 
144,372 3,616 

472,951 208,420 
122,115 82,372 273,230 376,902 14.831 71.937 664,963 276,424 

9,640,857 (1,406,789) 6,324,879 J2,035,292) 

EXHIBIT J-] (Continued) 
45,024 58.227 
592 6](, i00,92 i12,00 149,99 68}.37 
82 273 372 230 376,902 
941.387 15,965,736 (3,442,082 8,234,068 4,289,587 12,523,655 

67,399 17,936 85,33 .- 9,022 76,421 8,420 26,356 ! Z, 4 ~ ? 102 777 $ 9,448,403 $ 4,80_0,787 $14~249,19{) The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 

69 



CITY OF LEESVILLE, LOUISIANA ENTERPRISE FUNDS COMBINING B~JANCE SHEET JUNE 30, 1997 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY CURRENT LIABILITIES; (Payable from Current Assets) Bonds and certificates of indebtedness payable Accounts payable Other current liabilities Accrued expenses Customers' deposits Due to other funds Genera]. Fund Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund Sewer System Enterprise Fund Totals CURRENT LIABILITIES (Payable from Restricted Assets) Payable from revenue bond debt service account Revenue bonds Interest Payable from construction account Accounts and contracts Payable from general obligation bonds, debt service accounts General obligation bonds Interest Payable from certificates of indebtedness debt service account Certificates of indebtedness Totals Total Current Liabilities NONCURRENT LIABILITIES Revenue bonds General obligat~on bonds Certificates of indebtedness Total Noncurrent Liabilities Total Liabilities 

SEWER SYSTEM 
$ 30,169 6,994 10,340 
47,503 

44,122 
190,000 41,072 
_14,831 _ 290,025 337,528 
4,317,020 520,000 42837,020 5,174,548 

WATER SYSTEM 
113 5 4 24 149 
063 951 830 343 240 

51,340 26,055 

71,937 149,332 729,707 
896,120 830,000 ~26,120 2,455,827 

5],34( 26,05[ 
190,000 4],07? 
___ 8.6, 76 !i 439~ ~ -~i ~; 1,067,23!, 

EQUITY Contributed capital 2,982,238 2,390,013 5,372,25] Retained earnings (Accumulated Deficit) Reserved for Construction Debt Service Capital additions and contingencies Total Reserved Retained Earnings Unreserved Total Retained Earnings (Accumulated Deficit) Total Equity TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EOUITY 

229,108 145,830 374,938 916,679 ~L2291,61~ 4,273,855 
44,720 82,372 127,092 ~2,145) __145,053 21_344,960 ]~2j2 4_6.~ 6,6]8, $9,448,403 $4,800,787 $1~2.49 ~ ] 90 The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 
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CITY OF LEESVILLE, LOUISIANA ENTERPRISE FUNDS COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS (ACCUMULATED DEFICIT) YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997 

OPERATING REVENUES; Charges for services OPERATING EXPENSES; Salaries Payroll taxes Retirement Operating supplies Gas and oil utilities and telephone Depreciation Repairs and maintenance Testing Professional fees Provision for doubtful accounts Office expense Insurance Other Total Operating Expenses OPEF~TING INCOME NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) Ad valorem taxes Interest revenue Interest expense and fiscal charges Total Nonoperating Revenues ( Expenses ) INCOME BEFORE OPERATING TRANSFERS OPERATING TRANSFERS (OUT) General Fund NET INCOME (LOSS RETAINED EARNINGS, BEGINNING OF YEAR RETAINED EARNINGS (ACCUMULATED DEFICIT) END OF YEAR 

SEWER SYSTEM $ 463,646 

346,202 

EXHIBIT J-2 
WATER SYSTEM T_OTA] $1,088,107 $1,551,753 
166 12 15 28 5 83 220 ]75 
190 317 734 857 763 066 309 296 4,129 5,108 11,199 53,969 2,481 784,418 117,444 303,689 42],]33 

315,164 13,174 ___[7,076) _321,262 438,706 
_1~75,000) 263,706 ].,027,911 

i8,555 --I]62,693) 315,]64 3],72!~ ~]:44,138) 177j 12~. 159,551 598,257 
-1,,L00,000 ) _(615,.q o c (340,449) 295,396 ]x_323,3[}7 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 
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CITY OF LEESVILLE, LOUISIANA ENTERPRISE FUNDS COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Operating income Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by operating activities Depreciation Provision fer doubtful accounts Changes in assets and liabilities Accounts receivable Due from other funds Accounts payable Other current liabilities Accrued expenses Due to other funds Customers' deposits Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES Operating transfers out CAS]I FLOWS FROM CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES Issuance of bonds and certificates of indebtedness Ad valorem taxes Contributions in aid of construction Acquisition and construction of property, plant, and equipment Payments of bonds and other indebtedness Cost of issuing bonds and certificates of indebtedness Interest, excluding capitalized interest, paid on long-term debt Net Cash Provided Used by Capital Financing Activities CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES Redemption (purchase) of investments Interest received Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities DECREASE IN CASH CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR CASH. END OF YEAR CLASSIFIED AS Current Assets Restricted Assets TOTALS 

SEWER SYSTEM WATER SYSTEM 
EXHIBIT J-3 

$ 117,444 $ 303,689 $ 42],]3 
113,820 6,053 (3,223) (17B,707) (544) 150 (2,668) 52,325 

220,310 5,108 2,022) 
334,13[: I],16Z (5,245 (178,707 (3,998 1.580 

(175,000) (500,000) (675,000 
3,434,084 295,394 286,556 (3,500,124) (240,000) (9,022) 

3,434,084 295,394 716,515 1,003,07] (719,616) (231,860) 2]9,74 471,86 (9,022 (8,059) /~59,732) _L[~2 L~I 258,829 (394,693) (135,8{4 
248,404 13.174 236,299 19,662 (12,1(,5 - (235,230) 255,961 2.9,731 (99,076) (210,460) (309,[,36 538,684 489,089 ~Q27,7"i.3 $ 43 9,608 $ 278,629 $~]~!~2: 
42,819 396,789 $ 2,205 276,424 $ 45,024 __673~ 213 $439,608 $378,629 $_7!8,237 The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 
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CURRENT ASSETS Catch OTHER ASSETS Deposit TOTAL ASSETS 
CURRENT LIABILITIES Claims payable 

CITY OF LEESV~LLE, LOUISIANA INTERNAL SERVICE FUND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS INSURANCE FUND BALANCE SHEET JUNE 30, 1997 
ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 
EQUITY Retained earnings Reserved for employee benefits 
TOTAL L I AB ILI T_I=_E_S__-A-N O--E-Q-UITY 

EXHIBIT K- 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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CITY OF LEESVILLE, LOUISIANA INTERNAL SERVICE FUND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS INSURANCE FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN RETAINEI) EARNINGS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997 

OPERATING REVENUES Charges for services Employer and employee contributions Stop loss reimbursements Miscellaneous Total Operating Revenues 
OPERATING EXPENSES Insurance premiums Hospitalization/health Life Claims paid Administrative costs Total Operating Expenses NET LOSS RETAINED EARNINGS, BEGINNING OF YE~{ RETAINED EARNINqSL END OF 

EXHIBIT K-2 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 
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$324,011{, 25,85I 355,556 
79,694 5,440 253,920 _17,5Q6 
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CITY OF LEESVILLE, LOUISIANA INTERNAL SERVICE FUND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS INSURANCE FUND STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Operating income (loss) Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash provided by operating activities Changes in assets and liabilities Stop loss reimbursement receivable Claims payable Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES CASH FLOWS ]FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES INCREASE IN CASH CASH, BEGINNING C)F YEAR CASH. END OF YEAR 

EXHIBIT ~i--3 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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GENERAL FIXED ASSETS Land Buildings Improvements Equipment Construction 

CITY OF LEESVILLE, LOUISIANA STATEMENT OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS JUNE 30, 1997 

other than buildings in progress TOTAL GENERAL FIXED ASSETS INVESTMENT IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS General obligation bonds General Fund revenues Sales Tax revenues E911 Communications District revenues Federal and state grants General public contributions TOTAL INVESTMENT IN GENERAL FIXED ASSE 

3,020,]~!7 4,396,358 ]43,3(.8 7,789,648 
$20 ,.9 oo., 9~,) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT ACCOUNT GROUP This account group accounts for long-term debt not recorded in any other fund 
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ADDITIONAl, INFORMATION 
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CITY OF LEESVILLE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997 

FEDERAL AGENCY\ PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR PROGRAM TITLE U.S. Department of Co~nerce Economic Developmen L Administration Special Economic Development and Adjustment Assistance Program - Sudden and Severe Economic DJ slocatlen and Long-Term Economic Deterioration Leesvi] le Northside Industrial Park 

AGENCY OR CFDA NUMBER PASS-THROUGH GRANT-NUMBER TOTAL FEDERAL AWARD 

08-49-02945 $2,031,750 U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Community Planning and Development Pass-through the State of Louisiana Division of Administration Con~nunlty Development Block Grant - Small Cities Program 14.219 101-2011 750,000 U.S. Department of Justice Bureau of Justice Assistance Passed-through the State of Louisiana, Commission on Law Enforcement Byrne Formula Grant Program - Street Sales Disruption Program Year ending 5/31/97 Year ending 5/31/98 Program Totals Direct Local Law Enforcement Block Grant Program Agency Total U.S. Department of Transportation Federal Aviation Administration A:~r ort ]mprovement Program P~ase ] Phase II Program Totals 

16.579 16.579 96-B3-B.07-0005 97-B3-B.07-0041 
16.592 96LBVX3059 
20.106 20.]06 National Highway Traffic Safety Administration Passed-throu.. gh the State Of LOUlslana, Hlghw~Ly Safety Commission Alcohol Traffic Safety and Drunk Driving Preventlon Incentive Grants - 1996 Summertime Holidays Safe and Sober Campaign 20.60] Agency Total TOTALS 

3-22-057-04-93 3-22-0057-05 

9605-10 

16,474 16,08~ 33,355 

EDI RAI. AWARDS XP]:NDED 

15,682 ]7.939 
57 , 091 35 , 595 
1,389,213 433 368 -0 -0 

21227 
Notes: The Schedule of Expenditures for Federal Awards was prepared on the modified accrual basis ol accounting. Note 1 to the financial statements provides additional information reli~live to the City's accounting policies. The Airport Improvement Program was substantially complete as of June 30, 1996, wi!h all eligible grant expenditures being incurred prior to June 30, 1996. Final rei~JtSements under the grant were received during the year ended June 30, 19!)7. NO federal funds were awarded to subreciplents during the year ended June 30, 1997. See independent auditor's report 
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OTHER REPORTS REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT A~)ITING STANDARDS AND OMB CIRCULAR A-133 
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PM,~iH AYNE, MOOP, l~ & l II'I{RINGTON, l_hl 
REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED ON AN AUDIT OF PRIMARY GOVERNMENT, COMBINING INDIVIDUAl, FUND, AND ACCOUNT GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED iN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

The Honorab]e Jim Shapkoff, Jr., Mayor and Members of the City Council City of Leesville, Louisiana 
We have audited the primary government financial statements and the combJ11~nq, individual ~und, and account group financial statements of the City of Leesv/]le, Louisiana, as of and for the year ended June 30, 1997, and have issued our repoct: thereon dated November 17, ]997. In our report, our opinion was qualified because the financial statements of the General Fixed Assets account group include [m'~y assets acquired subsequent to 1971. Records oI general fixed assets acquired pri<>v to i[972 were not maintained. Generally accepted accounting principles require t~e recording of fixed assets at cost, or estimated historical cost if costs recotzSs are not available. Except as discussed in the above paragraph, we condueted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by ~e Comptroller General of the United Statea. Compliance As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City' s fJ nanci ~] statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its comp]rLax,c e with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants, noncomp]xa~e with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of finaneial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance wi~h those provisions was not an object:[ve of our audit and accordingly, we do Lot express such an opinion. The resu] ts of our tests disclosed instances ef noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Aud i t 3 :~g Standards, which are described in the accompanying schedule of f~ndings a~:Ld questioned costs as Finding 97-01 through Finding 97-05. In addition, we neted certain immaterial instances of noncompliance that we have reported to management of the City of Leesville, Louisiana, in a separate letter entitled Other Com,*le~t s and Recommendations dated November 17, 1997. 
MARVIN A IU~[IU CPA H fRio hKflOW, CPA RIIB[tl l llllO}t. Elq ~OBt~I W DVDRA[ ~ A I~E~EC[~ O ~OI~RIS. C [~.A HIC~IAEI A JlINEAU. ~P.A PH: (3JB) 44a IBg~ ~ FAX CtlD, 4~3 751!, 



PAYNIL, MOORE & I IF.F.IklNG'ION, I.l.P 
The Honorab]e Jim Shapkoff, Jr., Mayor and Members of the City Council City of Leesville, Louisiana 
Internal Control Over Financial~)_QZ.tJ__n~ In planning and performing our audit, we considered City of Leesville, Louisiana's internal control over financial reporting in order to determine our aud5 t ~ :ig procedures for "the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. However, we noted a certain matter involving the internal control over financiell reporting and its operations that we consider to be a reportable cond/t.io::. Reportable conditions involve matt er.,~ coming to our attention relat~ no! to significant deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal control over financial reporting that, in our judc lment, could adversely affect the CJ %y ' s ability to record, process, sunrmarize, and report financial data consistent with the assertions of management in the financial statements. The reportable cond~ t~ :,?a is described ill the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs ~.s Finding 97-06. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or mo:e of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low /eve] i he risk that misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned funct/on~;. Our consideration of the internal control over finaneial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that might be reportab]e conditions, and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all reportable conditions that are also considered to be material weaknesses. However, we be.'ieve that the reportable condition described above is not a material weakness. We also noted other matters involving the internal control over financial reportJr~g that we have reported to the management of the City of Leesville, Louisiana, il a separate letter, entitled Other Comments and Recommendations, dated Noven~e~ ]7, 1997. 
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PAYNI!, MOORE {b. t ll:.I{P.IN(~TON, I.I.P 
The llonorable Jim Shapkoff, Jr., Mayor and Members of the City Council City of Leesville, Louisiana 

November 17, 1997 
/_/P 
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PM,~,H }AYNE, h4OOlLE & l ])[}{F.JNGTON. LLP [fR;I[I~ll PI/~I~' A~CglJH}'~IN}'S 
REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 

The Honorable Jim Shapkoff, Jr., Mayor and Members of the City Council City of Leesville, Louisiana 
C~lJ ance We have audited the compliance of the City of Leesville, Louisiana, with the tyDes of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office Management and Budge{ (Of~S) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to its major fede]'a~ progcam for the year ended June 30, 1997. The City's major federal program is. identified in the sum~nary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedu] ~ of ~ indings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of ]aws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to its major federal program is the responsibility of management of the City of Leesville, Louisiana. 0~] responsibility is to express an opinion on the City's compliance based on ou~ audit. Except as discussed in Finding 97-07 in the accompanying schedule of findil]gs 8~+~(:t questioned costs, we conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with gel~era] ~y accepted auditing standards; the standards applicable to financial audits contaih{!d in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the Uni%{~d States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non~ProfJ t Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan a~d perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direc% slid material effect On a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examJ[~ing, on a test basis, evidence about the City's compliance with those requirements 8~d performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our ~ud~% does not provide a legal determination on City of Leesville, Louisiana's compliance with those requirements. 

PIt: {~18} 449 1093 ~ +,~ {31t~i ~,t9 ~+1t 



PM+H I'AYNE, MOORIL ~k t ]EI<I~,IN(;f(-)N, llp 
The Honorable Jim Shapkoff, Jr., Mayor and Members of the City Council City of Leesville, Louisiana 
As described in Finding 97-07 in the accompanying schedule of findings ai~d questioned costs, the City of LeesvJlle, Louisiana, did not comply with the requirements regarding the Davis-Bacon Act that are applicable to its major fe~~er~] program. Compliance with such requirements is necessary, in our opinio1,, fo~ the City of Leesville to comply with requirements applicable to that program. In our opinion, except for the noncompliance described in the preceding paragrapL, the City of Leesville, Louisiana, complied in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that are applicable to its major federal program f:>~ the year ended June 30, 1997. The results of our auditing procedures a]so disclosed another instance of noncompliance with those requirements that is required to be reported in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and which is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as Findi Ilg 97-08. Internal Control Over Compliance The management of City of Leesville, Louisiana, is responsible for establishing at+d maintaining effective internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regalations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning al.d performing our audit, we considered City of Leesville, Louisian~ s internal contt o] over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect ozl a major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures fen: %ke purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test: and report on interr*~] control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133. We noted certain matters involving the internal control ever compliance and ~ +. s operation that we consider to be reportable conditions. Reportable condii ioi~s involve matters coming to our attention relating to significant deficiencies J rL the design or operation of the internal control over compliance that, in our judgiiLer;+., could adversely affect the City's ability to administer a major federal program Jrt accordance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, a i~d grants. These reportable conditions are described in the accompanying schedule o~ findings and questioned costs as Finding 97-07 and Finding 97-08. 
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PM~~H I'AYNE, MOORE & I-II-I~,I<IN(iTON. M.P 
The Honorable Jim Shapkoff, Jr., Mayor and Members of the City Council City of Leesville, Louisiana 
A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or mo~ e of %he internal control components dcee not reduce to a relatively low level file rJ sk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regular i ol,~;, contracts, and grants that would be material in relation to a major federal prog~ e~m being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees 5 r* the normal course of performing their assigned functions. Our consideration of t he internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters Jn lhe internal control that might be reportable conditions and, accordingly, would ~iot necessarily disclose all reportable conditions that are also considered to be material weaknesses. However, we believe the reportable condition described 5rl I he accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as Finding 97-07 to be a material weakness. This report Js intended for the information of the Mayor, members of the City Council and management of the City of Leesville, Louisiana, federal aws~dillq agencies, and pass-through entities. However, this report is a matter of pu|,l i c! record and its distribution is not limited. 

November 17, 1997 A 
Zz,,~ 
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CITY OF LEESVILLE, LOUISIANA SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997 (Continued) PART I - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS 
We have audited the primary government financial statements and the combining, :individual fund, and account group financial statements of the City of Leesville, Louisiana, as of and for the year' ended June 30, ]997, and have issued our report thereon dated November 17, 1997. In our report, our opinion was qualified because the financial statements of tile General Fixed Assets account group include only assets acquired subsequent to ]97]. Records of general fixed assets acquired prior to ]972 were not maintaJ1~ec3. Generally accepted accounting principles require tile recording of fixe.:i assets at cost or estimated historical cost if costs records are nc~t available. We noted a certain matter, as described in Finding 97-06 in Part II of thJ ~ schedule, involving the internal eontrol over financial reporting and its operations that we consider to be a reportable condition in accordance wil h generally accepted auditing .=;tandards and the standards applicab]e ~ o financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. We believe that this reportab}e condition is not a material weakness. Our tests of compliance based on an audit in accordance with Government Auditing of financial statements performed Standards disclosed instances <~f noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditi;ig Standards, and which are described in Finding 97-01 through Finding 97--05 in Part II of this schedule. We noted c:ertain matters, described in Part IIl of this schedule as Findings 97-07 and 97--08, involving the internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to the City's major federal program and its operations, that we consider to be reportable conditions required to reported in accordance with OMB Circular A-133. We believe the reportable condition described in Finding 97-07 ~o be a material weakness. We have audited the compliance of the City of Leesville, Louisiana, with the types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Con~3iance Supplement that are applicable to J l s major federal program for the year' ended June 30, 1997, and have issued o~ir report thereon dated November 17, 1997. In our report, our opinion was qualified because, as described in Finding 97-07 in Part III oI this schedule, the City of Leesville, Louisiana did not comply with %he requirements regarding the Davis-Bacon Act that are applicable to its majc>r 
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CITY OF I,EESVILLE, LOUISIANA SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997 (Continued) federal program. Compliance with such requirements is necessary, J.n o.n opinion, for the City of Leesville to comply with requirements applicab]e to that program. Our audit disclosed audit findings which we are required to report undel Section 510(a) of OMB Circular A-133. These findings are included in Pa~t III of this schedule. We identified the following program of the City of Leesville, Louisiana, as a major program: CFDA #11.307, Special Economic Development and Adjustment Assistance Program - Sudden and SeverE: Economic Dislocations and Long-term Economic Deterioration - Leesville Northside Industrial Park. The dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B proglams, as described in Section 520(b) of OMB Circular A-133, was $300,000. City of Leesville, Louisiana, had no Type A programs during year ended June 30, ]997. 
The City of Leesville, Louisiana, did not qualify as a low-risk auditee under Section 530 of OMB Circular A-]33. 
PART II - FINDINGS RELATING TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS WHICH ARE REQUIRED TO BE REPORTED UNDER GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

FINDING 97-0] COMPLIANCE WIT}{ THE LOUISIANA LOCAL GOVERNMENT BUDGEU ACT Criteria: It is Our understanding that reqaires that a budget be adopted for the Louisiana Local Government Budge% Act the general fund and all special revenue funds; that budgeted expenditures can not exceed available resources (budgeted revenue plus beginning fund balancE!); and that budget amendments are required when actual expenditures exceed budgeted expenditures by 5% or more. Condition: We found that a budget was not adopted for the HUD Voucher Proglam Special Revenue Fund; that budgeted expenditures exceed available resources Jn the Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund; and that actual expenditures exceeded budgeted expenditures by 5% er more in the General Fund and the Sales Tax Special Reven,le Fund. Cause: The HUD Voucher Program was transferred to the Leesville Housing AuthorSty in the prior fiscal year. However, a few transactions in relation to the termination of the program occurred in the year ending June 30, 1997. Discussion with management indicated that budgeting expenditures in excess of avaJ ] ab]e resources for the Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund was inadvertent. Management 
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CITY OF LEFSVILLE, LOUISIANA SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997 (Cent inued ) reviewed the budget prior to year end and proposed budget amendments to the City Council which were approved. However, certain necessary year-end journal entlJes prepared as a result of our engagement were not taken into account which resulted in actual expenditures exceeding budgeted expenditures in the above funds by m(n e than 5%. Recommendations'. We recommend that budgets be adopted for the general and ~ l] special revenue funds in accordance with the Louisiana Local Government Budget Acl ; that more care be taken in the budgeting process so budgeted expenditures do nc,t exceed available resources; and that budget amendment process include considerati<m of all facts and circumstances. Management's Response: The City of Leesville will prepare a budget for all special revenue funds in accordance with the Louisiana Local Government Budget Act and wi I ] ensure that budgeted expenditures do not exceed available resources in the future. FINDING 97-02 COMPLIANCE WITH ASSET MANAGEMENT I.AWS Criteria: It is our understanding that Louisiana Revised Statutes require the City to maintain records of all land, buildings, improvements other than buildings, equipment, and any other fixed assets which were purchased or otherwise acquire~-~, and for which the City is accountable. The records should include the date of purchase of such property or equipment, the initial costs, the disposition, if any, the purpose of such disposition, and the recipient of the disposed property or equ [pment. In addition, federal regulations may require that additJ on~ ] information be maintained on property and equipment acquired with federal funds. Condition: Records of general fixed assets acquired prior to 1972 were not maintained. Records of fixed assets acquired after 1971 do not always contain a] ] required J nformation. Recommendation: We understand that the City has an on-going project to bring the City's records into compliance with these requirements. We recommend that the CJ~y complete this project as soon as possible. Management's Response: The City will continue to work on bringing our general fixed assets list into compliance to include those assets purchased prior to ] 972. FINDING 97-03 COMPLIANCE WITH BOND INDENT[IRES Criteria: Various indentures for bonds and certificates of indebtedness require the City to establish sinking funds into which the City is required each mo1~th to deposit an amount equal to one-sixth of the next interest payment plus one-twelfth of the next principal payment. Condition: Monthly transfers were not made in all cases to the various debt service sinking funds as required, re.~ulting in deficiencies in these funds st 
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CITY OF LEESVII.LE, LOUISIANA SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997 (Continued) various times during the year. In some cases, lump sum transfers were made, a~ needed, to pay principal and interest when due. By June 30, 1997, all sinkin~ funds were current, except for the Certificates of Indebtedness, Series ]994, sinking fund which had a deficit of $78,232. 
Cause: Discussion with management indicated that monthly transfers were not made as scheduled due to periodic cash flow problems. Reconm~endations: We recommend that the City comply w~th the sinking fund requirements of the indentures for the various bonds and certifJ cates o~ indebtedness. Management "s Response: The City will monthly deposits on a timely basis as FINDING 97-04 

make the required debt service sinking fund outlined in the bond indentures. COMPLIANCE WITH PUBLIC BID LAW - CHANGE ORDERS 
Criteria: It is our understanding that Louisiana Revised Ststutes require that al change orders to contracts be in writing. Condition: We were informed by the City's consulting engineer that interim verbs3 change orders were approved by him and a representative of the federal agc~ney funding the Northside Industrial Park project because the amount of the necessal y changes are not determinable until the changes are substantially complete due ~c> unpredictable conditions at the project site. Formal written change orders are to be completed as soon as the extent of the changes are determinable. Cause: The consulting engineer indicated that it was impossible to determine the amount of the necessary changes to the project until the changes are substsn~Ja] 3y complete due to unpredictable conditions at the project ~,~ite. The project w~Ls still in progress at June 30, 1997. Recommendations: We recommend that all change orders be in writing to comply with state law. If a situation similar to this occurs in the future, we recommencl that a series of written change orders be prepared and approved to comply with sta'.e law. Management's Response: The City will implement a policy to insure that all f~itule change orders will be in writing to comply with state law. FINDING 97-05 COMPLIANCE WITH PAYROLL TAX DEPOSITS RE~_]RE~EN],<; Cri teria : Federal laws and regulations require that federal payroll taxes be deposited timely in a federal depository bank. Condition: On several occasions duringthe year, timely payroll tax deposits were 
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CITY OF I,EESVILLE, LOUISIANA SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997 (Cont inued) not made resulting in the City paying $]4,787 in interest and penalties during the year ended June 30, 1997. Cause: We were informed that timely payroll tax deposits were not always made dL)e to cash flow shortages. Recommendations: To comply with laws an(] regulations and to eliminate unnecessazy interest and penalties, we recommend that payroll tax deposits be made t~me]y. Management should review all available sources of cash, including investments, Jr* order to make timely payroll deposits. Management should also prepare monthly ea~h flow projections 'to predict cash flow shortages so that arrangements can be ins(le in advance to eliminate these cash flow shortages. Management's Response: The City will make payroll tax deposits on a timely bas~s to elininate the assessment of any unnecessary interest and penalty charges. FINDING 97-06 RECONCILIATION OF AD VAI)OREM TAX SUBSIDIARY TO GENE Criteria: Reconciliation of subsidiaries to the general ledger is an integral internal control procedure. Condition: We found that the subsidiary listing of outstanding ad valorem taxes was not reconciled to the unpaid tax notices file or the related general ]edgez control account during the year ended June 30, 1997. We were also informed theft receipts were not posted to the subsidiary ledger on a daily basis. Considerab~[e time was required to reconcile the ad valorem tax accounts to ensure that ~il ] receipts were deposited and correctly recorded in the general ledger. The result of our extended procedures was an irmnaterial unreconciled difference of less i ban 1/2% of the ad valorem tax revenue. Cause: Discussion with management indicated that a lack of communication between departments resulted in the reconciliations not being prepared during the year. We were informed thai: there is not sufficient personnel to ensure that receipts a~ e posted to the subsidiary ledger on a daily basis. Recommendations: We recommend that procedures be developed and implemented to ensure that the subsidiary of unpaid tax notice file and to monthly. outatanding ad valorem taxes is reconciled to ~!le the ]~elated general ledger control account at ]east 

Management's Response: The City will implement procedures to insure that subsidiary iedgers are reconciled to collections on a monthly basis. 
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CITY OF LEESVILLE, LOUISIANA SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997 (Continued) PART III - FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR FEDERAL AWARDS FIND]ING 97-07 Federal Agency: U. S. Department of Co~nerce, Federal Agency Grant Number: 0B-49--02945 CFDA Number: ].1.037 Program Title: Special Economic Development Sudden and Severe Economic Dislocation and Leesville Northside Industrial Park. 

COMPLIANCE WITH DAVIS-BACON ACT ]Economic Development Administration 
and Adjustment Assistance Program Long-term Economic Deterioration 

Criteria: It is our understanding that when required by the Davis-Bacon Act, the Department of Labor's (DOL) governmentwide implementation of the Davis-Bacon Act, or by federal prog]?am legislation, all laborers and mechanics employed by contractors or subcentractors on constructien contracts in excess of $2,000 financed by federal assistance funds must be paid wages not less than those established for the locality of the project (prevailing wage rate) by the DOL (4(I USC 276a to 276a-7) . The contracts with the various construction companies included clauses that the contractors would pay prevailing wage rates in accordance with the Davis-Bacon Act. Condition: We understand that the City requires the consulting project engineeJ to monitor compliance with the provisions of the Davis-Bacon Act. We were informed by s member of the project engineer's staff that they did not monitor comp]iance with the provisions of the Davis-Bacon Act during the year ended June 30, 1997, foz construction under this project. This person also stated that they had no~ required the contractors to furnish certified payrolls during the year and thai they' had not conducted field interviews with the contractors' employees. Because of the lack of records, we were unable to apply the suggested auditing procedares relating to compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act found in the U.S. Office Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement. Questioned Costs : None Cause: We were unable to determine %he reason the project engineer's staff fa~l~,d to monitor compliance with the provisions of the Davis-Bacon Act during the year ended June 30, 1997. As part of our audit of the City fo1: the prior fisca] year ended June 30, 1!)96, we tested the projeet engineer's procedures for monite)~ng compliance with the provisions of the Davis-Bacon Act for the year ended June 30, 1996, and found no problems at that time. The City incurred construction costs of $288,912 on this project during the year ended June 30, 1997, as compared to the $1,575,996 incurred in construction costs during the year ended June 30, ]997. 
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CITY OF LEESVILLE, LOUISIANA SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997 
( Concluded ) 

Recommendations: We recommend that required reports be prepared and furnished ~o the EDA quarterly in accordance with the grant agreement. We also recommend theft the City develop procedures to determine what reports are required to be filed i(>l each federal financial assistance program, and that procedures be developed io ensure that required reports are filed timely and accurately. Management "s Response: The City will develop procedures to determine what repor~ s are required to be filed with each federal financial assistance program and wJ 3 see that all reports are filed timely and accurately. 
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OTHER COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
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PM,+H ~AYNI/, M()ORIU & l II~I~.I/.IN(3TON, LI.P 
OTHER COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

The Honorable Jim Shapkoff, Jr., Mayor and Members of the City Council City of Leesville, Louisiana 
In planning and performing our audit of the primary government financial statement s and the combining, individual fund, and account group financial statements of the primary government of the City of LeeE~ville, Louisiana, as of and for tile yea~ ended June 30, ]997, we considered the City's internal controls to determine ou: auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the finano, i61 statements and not to provide assuranf;e on the internal controls. However, during our audit we became aware of several matters that are opportunities for strengthening internal controls, operating efficiency, and compliance. The memorandum that accompanies this letter summarizes our comments and suggestioi~s regarding those matters. A separate report, dated November 17, 1997, contains o~iI report on reportable conditions on the City's internal control. This letter does not affect our report, dated November 17, 1997, on the primary government financi a l statements and %:he combining, indivJ dual fund, and account group financJ a statements of the primary government of the City of Leesville, Louisiana. We will review the status of these comments during our next audit engagement. We have already discussed many of these comments and suggestions with managem6.1,t personnel, and we will be pleased to discuss them in detail at your convenient(=, to perform any additional study of these matters, or to assist you in implementihg the recommendations. 

November 17, 1997 
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Manaaement ' s ResPonse : that property owners are payments. 
The City of Leesville has implemented procedures to ~nsu~e invoiced for demolition costs and liens are filed on nor~- 

COMPLIANCE WITH ARTICLE 7. SECTION 14 OF' STATE CONSTITUTION Article 7, Section 14 of the Constitution of the State of Louisiana provides, with some limited exceptions, that funds, credit, property, or things of value of the state or of any political subdivision shall not by loaned, pledged, or donated ~ o or for any person, association, or corporation, public or private. It is oul understanding that memorial or flora] gifts, and payment of dues to the Chambel of Commerce are prohibited under this section. As in prior years, our tests contimle to 6isclose some immaterial amounts paid for memorial and floral gifts and paymez,t of dues to the Cha~dger of Commerce during the year ended June 30, 1997. ~;e continue to recemmend that all department heads be informed of this provision of the state constitution and that all such charges be reviewed and approved by the City Attorney prior to being incurred. Manaaement' s ResDonse payment for memorial or TRAVEL ADVANCES 
The City will no longer pay annual[ chamber dues or m~ke floral gifts. 

We found that the unused portion of some travel advances were not prompt~y reimbursed to the City. In fact, the unused amounts were reimbursed over a period of time by being withheld from the individuals" salaries. It is our understand~ 1~g that state law prohibits payroll advances. By recovering the unused portions of the travel advances as payroll withholdings, it may be construed that these travel advances in effect were payroll advances. We understand that the City is currerlti[y in the process of updating its travel policy. We recommend that the travel policy include guidelines for the prompt reimbursement of unused travel advances. Manaaement' s Response : The City adwlnces and travel reimbursements has included guidelines in updates to our travel[ 
INSUFFICIENT DOCUMENTATION FOR CREDIT CARD CHARGES 

pertaining to trawi~] policy. 
Our tests of charges on credit cards indicated that sufficient documentation is not always furnished to the accounting department to determine if the charges are, !n fact, liabilities of the City. We recommend that all credit card charges be supported by sufficient documentation to substantiate that the charge was authorized and incurred on behalf of the City. Manaqement' s Response : The City will require credit card charge prior to its pa>nnent in liabilities of the City. 
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documentation be supplied for each order to verfiy all charges a~e 



ADJUSTMENTS TO CUSTOMER'S ACCOUNTS Our tests of adjustments to sewer and water customer's accounts indicated that sufficient written detail was not always attached to the adj~istment form to expYaJn the reason for the adjustment. However, we were able to obtain sufficient, additional verbal explanations for these adjustments. We recommend that written detail to explain the adjustment be attached to the adjustment form to prov~c~e adequate documentation of the transaction. Mansqement's ResDonse: The to be made to customer's indicating the reason why an City has implemented a policy that no adjustments ale accounts unless written documentation is provided adjustmeut is necessary. PAYMENT AGREEMENTS ON DELINOUENT CUSTOMER ACCOUNTS NOT ENFORCED 
In prior Memorandums of Other Comments and Recommendations l we reported %hat payment agreements on delinquent customer accounts were not being enforced. Ci1~y policy requires a delinquent water or sewer customer to sign a payment agreemei~t in erder to continue to receive servif:e. The agreement specifies that the customi~r must pay the current bill plus a negotiated amount on the past due amount. We found that as long as the customer made an occasional payment on account, then the customer continued to receive service. We found no improvement in this area during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997. We continue to recommend that the City's policies be enforced. We also recommend that the City Administrator rev~ ew delinquent accounts monthly with the person in charge of collections to enhance enforcement of the City's policies. ManaQement's Response: customer accounts and the The City will enforce payment agreements on delinquei~t delinquent accounts will be reviewed on a monthly bas~s. 
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